Edmonton School District No. 7
One Kingsway
Edmonton, Alberta

McCauley Chambers
Board Meeting #19 Tuesday, September 22, 2015
1:30 p.m.

A. O Canada ¥}

B. Roll Call

C. Approval of the Agenda

D. Ward G Trustee Candidate 3-Minute Platform Speeches

1.  Ward G Trustee Candidate 3-Minute Platform Speeches
(Information)

E. Communications from the Board Chair

F. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools

G. Minutes:
2. DRAFT — Board Meeting #18 — September 8, 2015

H. Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives
(NOTE: Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8021] is

required by 4:30 p.m. on Monday, September 21, 2015 to speak
under this item.)

AGENDA &

I.  Reports:
3. Motion re EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy
BOARD OF (Recommendation)
TRUSTEES
Michael J 4. Motion re Wellness Foundation for Alberta
ichael Janz .
Board Chair (Recommendation)
Michelle Draper 5. 2014-201§ Board Self-Evaluation
Board Vice-Chair (Information)
Sherry Adams 6. 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’ Evaluation
Orville Chubb (Information)
Ken Gibson
Nathan Ip 7. Interim Reading Assessment
Cheryl Johner (Information - Response to Request for Information #087)
Ray Martin

Note: There will be a 5-10 minute presentation for this item.

8. Bereavement
(Information)

Page 1 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



=

©c z £

Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives — 5:00 p.m.
(NOTE: Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8021] is required by
4:30 p.m. on Monday, September 21, 2015 to speak under this item.)

Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports

Trustee and Board Requests for Information

Notices of Motion

Meeting Dates

Adjournment

Page 2 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



S8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

DATE: September 22, 2015

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools
SUBJECT: Ward G Trustee Candidate 3-Minute Platform Speeches

ORIGINATOR: Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Executive Director Governance and Strategic
Support Services

REFERENCE: May 26, 2015 Board Report — Edmonton Public School Board Trustee
By-Election — Ward G
June 9. 2015 Board Report — Edmonton School District No. 7 By-
Election Bylaw

BACKGROUND

On May 26, 2015, the Board approved the appointment of the City of Edmonton’s returning
officer as the Board’s returning officer for the purposes of conducting a by-election to fill a
Trustee vacancy in Ward G. The by-election will take place on Monday, September 28, 2015.

In an effort to help voters learn about the candidates and make an informed choice, Edmonton
Public Schools is offering each Ward G Trustee candidate three minutes to present their
election platforms at the September 22, 2015 public Board meeting. The presentations will
commence at 1:30 p.m. and will be webcast live. The presentations will be posted on the
District website following the Board meeting for the public to view prior to by-election day.
The rules for the September 22, 2015 presentations are as follows:

e Participation is optional, but no written submissions will be accepted from candidates who
choose not to participate.

e The presentations will be webcast live.

e The webcasts will be posted on the District website for the public to view prior to the
election.

e The presentations will be strictly timed to ensure fairness for all candidates.

e The presentations will not be edited.

e The webcasts will be removed after by-election day.

NOTE: Candidates will be called in alphabetical order to make their presentations.

The City of Edmonton Returning Officer is overseeing the 2015 Edmonton Public School
Board Ward G By-Election. Information regarding the Ward G By-Election (including
candidate contact information, advance voting and polling station information) can be found on
the City of Edmonton’s webpage. Representatives from the City of Edmonton will provide a
verbal update regarding the Ward G By-Election following the candidate speeches at the
September 22, 2015 Board meeting.

SS:mmf

Page 3 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2014-15/may26/EdmontonPublicSchoolBoardTrusteeBy-election-WardG.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2014-15/may26/EdmontonPublicSchoolBoardTrusteeBy-election-WardG.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2014-15/june9/07-EdmontonSchoolDistrictNo.7By-electionBylaw.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2014-15/june9/07-EdmontonSchoolDistrictNo.7By-electionBylaw.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/board/about/wardgby-election/
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/TrusteeCandidatePlatformPresentationRules.pdf
http://www.edmonton.ca/city_government/by-election.aspx

% EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Edmonton School District No. 7

MINUTE BOOK

Board Meeting #18

Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Trustees of the Edmonton School District No. 7 of the
Province of Alberta held in McCauley Chambers in the Centre for Education on Tuesday,
September 8, 2015 at 2:00 p.m.

Present:
Trustees
Sherry Adams Ken Gibson Cheryl Johner
Orville Chubb Nathan Ip Ray Martin
Michelle Draper Michael Janz
Officials
Lisa Austin Ron MacNeil Darrel Robertson
Jim Davies Kathy Muhlethaler Sandra Stoddard
Jonah Lempogo Kent Pharis Mike Suderman
Lorne Parker
Board Chair: Michael Janz Recording Secretary: Manon Fraser

A. O Canada I*I

Staff Group Representatives

Edmonton Public Teachers — Nels Olsen, President
CUPE Local 474 — John Vradenburgh, President

B. Roll Call: (2:00 p.m.)

The Superintendent advised that all Trustees were present.

C. Approval of the Agenda

MOVED BY Trustee Draper:
“That the agenda for the September 8, 2015 board meeting be approved as
printed.” (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED)

September 8, 2015

Page 4 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




% EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Edmonton School District No. 7

MINUTE BOOK

D. Communications from the Board Chair

The Board Chair noted that eight candidates have registered to run in the Ward G Trustee
By-Election. As part of the September 22, 2015 public Board meeting, each of the Ward
G Trustee candidates will be provided three minutes to present their election platform.
The presentations will commence at 1:30 p.m. and will be webcast live. The
presentations will posted on the District website following the Board meeting for the
public to view prior to By-Election Day — which is Monday, September 28, 2015.

The Board Chair thanked all district staff who worked through July and August to get
schools ready for the first day of school today.

E. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools

The Superintendent noted that, today marks the beginning of the 2015 -2016 school year.
This morning 92,470 students, slightly more than the 92,000 projected, were back in
class, meeting new and old friends, finding homerooms and lockers, cracking the books,
and setting their hopes and dreams for the coming year. As they walked through the
doors, they were met by staff throughout district schools who are eager to welcome,
support and challenge them.

Success for all students remains the District’s collective focus and we will continue to
ensure each student has access to an excellent teacher in a high-quality learning
environment. Edmonton continues to experience growth and in some schools, space
issues continue to be a reality - especially in the southwest. While infrastructure will
continue to be a challenge this year, his commitment is to continue to work
collaboratively with the Province, parents and stakeholders to find ways to meet the
District’s space challenges.

As stated in the District’s strategic plan, parents are key partners in the education of their
children and so today, he encouraged all parents to seek out every opportunity throughout
the year to get involved in their child’s education. By working together we can make a
huge difference in a child’s educational success.

He stated, in conclusion, that he is looking forward to the year ahead with enthusiasm and
optimism and that it is an honor serving such a great District.

September 8, 2015

Page 5 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




% EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Edmonton School District No. 7

MINUTE BOOK

F. Minutes

1. Board Meeting #17 — June 23, 2015

Trustee Chubb referred to the notice of motion recorded on pages eleven and twelve of
the minutes with respect to the Alberta School Employee Benefit Plan (ASEBP) and the
Alberta School Boards Association (ASBA) and advised that this motion will be
scheduled for deliberation at a future Board meeting pending response to the Board’s
request for further information from the ASBA.

Trustee Gibson noted a revision was required on page nine of the minutes with respect to
the vote on Trustee Ip’s amendment. The vote should have indicated that Trustees Adams,
Ip, Janz and Johner voted in favour of the amendment and that Trustees Chubb and Martin
voted in opposition.

MOVED BY Trustee Chubb:
“That the minutes of Board Meeting #17 held June 23, 2015 be approved as
amended.” (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED)

G. Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives — None.
H. Reports

2. Actions Taken Under Delegation of Authority — 2015 Summer Recess

Information was provided regarding the actions taken by the Superintendent of Schools
under the delegation of authority during the 2015 summer recess.

3. Bereavements

Vice-Chair Draper reported on the passing of Mrs. Audra Bourque, Mr. Barry Brown,
Mrs. Jacqueline Gafka.

1. Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports

Trustee Draper advised that she and Board Chair Janz, as well as representatives from
Edmonton Catholic Schools, the City of Edmonton and Edmonton Police Services were in
attendance at a media conference on August 31, 2015 to remind drivers to slow down in
school zones and to pay extra attention to safe student drop off and pick up.

September 8, 2015

Page 6 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




% EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Edmonton School District No. 7

MINUTE BOOK

Trustee Draper advised that she and Board Chair Janz attended the First Riders Event on
September 1, 2015. Education Minister Eggen also attended the event.

Trustee Draper was pleased to note that Alberta Education will be working with school
authorities to schedule Early Development Instrument (EDI) data collection and information
sharing during the 2015-2016 school year. This will support the commitment to improve
the wellbeing of children as identified through the Early Childhood Development Mapping
Research Project (2009-2014). She was also pleased to note that Alberta Education has
indicated its commitment to ensuring that supports are in place to ensure the 2016 data
collection is a success. Work is underway to ensure that school boards have information,
materials, support and training for EDI data collection. Financial reimbursement for the
kindergarten teacher time required to complete the EDI questionnaires will be provided, and
the Ministry is examining ways to ease the administrative burden associated with the data
collection activity.

Trustee Adams, the Board’s representative on the Edmonton Public Schools Foundation
Board of Governors, reported on the following upcoming fundraising events:

e An Evening with Tommy Banks - Wednesday, September 23, 2015 at the Enjoy
Centre in St Albert - the event is being sponsored by Westglen School as part of its
75" anniversary celebration

e The 2" Annual edMUDton Urban Adventure 5km Mud Run — Saturday,
September 26, 2015 at Chappelle Gardens

Trustee Adams expressed appreciation for the sponsoring groups and their wonderful
support in raising funds for full-day kindergarten.

Trustee Gibson reported on the inaugural meeting of the Construction, Manufacturing and
Transportation Career Pathways Working group held on August 18, 2015. The
committee, chaired by district staff member Julian Pacholik, is comprised of internal and
external stakeholders. The committee is proposing to focus on an imitative for junior
high, given the excellent work already underway for elementary and senior high students.

The focus of the initial meeting was to develop a framework to evaluate potential
initiatives. Key criteria include:

e Link to curricular outcomes

e Accessibility for all junior high students

e Information about pathways and next steps

e Stakeholder support

September 8, 2015

Page 7 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




% EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Edmonton School District No. 7

MINUTE BOOK

Trustee Gibson noted that the working group has made an excellent start for this exciting
district initiative.

Trustee Janz noted the District is fully committed to finding cost savings and efficiencies
aligning with the direction provided by Premier Rachel Notley and Education Minister
Eggen and is open to continued expansions of partnerships for cost savings. He noted
that, with regard to the Edmonton Student Transportation Authority (ESTA) initiative
with Edmonton Catholic Schools, that the District understands the complexity of the issue
and is fully committed to resolving the issues of all parties to ensure the initiative can go
forward. The suggestions that the project is on hold are erroneous. He noted, in
conversations with the Board Chair of Edmonton Catholic Schools, that they are fully-
committed to the initiative as well.

J. Trustee and Board Requests for Information — None.

K. Notices of Motion

Trustee Draper served notice of the following motion:

That Edmonton Public Schools endorse the overall EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy, and
specifically those recommendations in the report connected to education.

Trustee Janz served notice of the following motion:

That the Edmonton Public School Board, in line with our previous advocacy for initiatives
supporting health and wellness promotion and investing in disease and illness
prevention, give our conceptual endorsement to supporting a Wellness Foundation for
Alberta, as outlined by Wellness Alberta.

L. Next Board Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 22, 2015 at 1:30 p.m.

M. Adjournment (2:20 p.m.)

The Board Chair adjourned the meeting.

Michael Janz, Board Chair Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Executive Director
Governance and Strategic Support
Services/Corporate Secretary

September 8, 2015

Page 8 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Recommendation Report

DATE: September 22, 2015

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Trustee Michelle Draper

SUBJECT: Motion re EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook — Section 5.2.2 — Notices of Motion

EndPovertyEdmonton Website
City of Edmonton — EndPovertyEdmonton Webpage

ISSUE
Notice of motion was served at the September 8, 2015 Board meeting.

BACKGROUND

EndPovertyEdmonton, the Mayor’s Task Force to End Poverty, is comprised of seven Working
Groups. Trustee Draper and Trustee Adams, along with District staff, have been involved in the
Education Working Group. There is also an Aboriginal Roundtable, and Information and
Research Roundtable, all working tougher to develop a ten-year action plan which includes:

¢ Information on the nature, extent and causes of poverty within the Edmonton Region

e A concrete plan for eliminating poverty in Edmonton within a generation

e Recommendations to Council on how to implement the plan.

A copy of the EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy is provided for information in Attachment I.

RECOMMENDATION
That Edmonton Public Schools endorse the overall EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy, and
specifically those recommendations in the report connected to education.

CONSIDERATIONS & ANALYSIS

Given the District’s involvement in the EndPovertyEdmonton city-wide effort to find innovative
solutions to poverty to ensure that all Edmontonians achieve their full potential, and given that
the Mayor’s Task Force to End Poverty aligns with District Priority #3 - Enhance public
education through communication, engagement and partnerships, and Goal 2 of the Strategic
Plan - Supports for the whole child, it is being recommended that Edmonton Public Schools
endorse the overall EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy, and specifically those recommendations in
the report connected to education.

NEXT STEPS

Pending approval of the recommendation, a letter will be sent endorsing the overall
EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy and specifically those recommendations in the report connected
to education.

ATTACHMENT
ATTACHMENT I - EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy

MD:mmf

Page 9 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf
http://www.endpovertyedmonton.ca/about/
http://www.edmonton.ca/city_government/initiatives_innovation/eliminating-poverty-in-edmonton.aspx
http://static1.squarespace.com/static/54eb5df3e4b0904aceb80bc4/t/56004a2ee4b0057328e267d9/1442859566791/EPE_Strategy_Sept2015_PRINTER-FRIENDLY_Sep21.pdf
http://static1.squarespace.com/static/54eb5df3e4b0904aceb80bc4/t/56004a2ee4b0057328e267d9/1442859566791/EPE_Strategy_Sept2015_PRINTER-FRIENDLY_Sep21.pdf

ATTACHMENT I

END

POVERTY
IN A
GENERATION

A STRATEGY SEPTEMBER 2015

endpoverty

Page 10 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Edmonton is a prosperous city.

Our city is growing and thriving. Unless
we see or experience poverty first hand,
we may not realize that our prosperity
is not shared by all of us.



POVERTY EXISTS IN THE MIDST OF OUR PROSPERITY

One out of every eight people living in Edmonton — 100,870 of us - is living in
poverty'. Those twelve per cent of us do not have the means to assure stable secure
housing, adequate nutritious food or the conditions that foster health, safety and basic
quality of life.

One out of every five Edmonton children - nearly 33,000 - is living in poverty.
Just over one in three Edmonton children who lives in a lone-parent family live

in poverty.2 In addition, almost one in two Aboriginal children lives in poverty. Those
children’s living conditions are less likely to foster their healthy development or enable
them to get the full benefit from their education. That limits their opportunities to
thrive into successful adulthood.

POVERTY HURTS ALL OF US

Poverty has an economic impact — Aside from the cost of services that might not be

needed if one in eight of us did not live in poverty, our fellow Edmontonians who live in
poverty are consumed with meeting their survival needs. They have little energy or time
to contribute their creativity and skills to the greater economy and community. They do
not have the financial means to be employees, customers and clients of our businesses.

Poverty has a human rights impact — The United Nations Charter highlights

"...the right of people to live in freedom and dignity, free from poverty and despair...
with an equal opportunity to enjoy all their rights and fully develop their human
potential.” Too many of us do not experience those conditions.

WE CAN CHANGE THIS — AND WE MUST

In March 2014, EndPovertyEdmonton was appointed as a Task Force by City Council.
Building on a history of collaborative work led by the City and the United Way Capital
Region, the Task Force is moving ahead boldly to identify collective and tangible
actions needed to eliminate poverty in Edmonton.

THE GOAL: END POVERTY IN ONE GENERATION

...A child born in poverty today will not live in poverty as an adult.
...One generation later, that child’s child will not be born into poverty.

There are no quick fixes. The Task Force has identified actions that Edmontonians
can take now to have an immediate impact and that address the root causes of
poverty. Ultimately these actions will enable Edmontonians to become their own
agents of change and fulfill their aspirations for a better life in our city.

Join the movement to end poverty in one generation.

%

-

Mayor Don Iveson
City of Edmonton
EndPovertyEdmonton Task Force Co-Chair

Rt. Rev. Jane Alexander
Bishop, Anglican Diocese of Edmonton
EndPovertyEdmonton Task Force Co-Chair

Page 12 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



THE
-ndPovertyEdmonton
STRATEGY AIMS TO

DO THREE THINGS

Paint the picture

so Edmontonians know the reality of poverty
in our city — what it is, what it means in people’s
lives, and how it affects all of us.

Set priorities

that begin to have an immediate impact for
people who are living in poverty now, while
we address root causes and generate long-
term solutions that will end poverty.

We don't just want to help people cope
with poverty. We want to END POVERTY
In one generation.

Kick start a
movement

We are nearly a million strong. We have
a track record of amazing accomplishments.
We can do this.



TABLE OF
CONTENTS

EndPovertyEdmonton PRIORITIES AT A GLANCE

PAINT THE PICTURE:

Poverty in Edmonton “To be successful, to end
poverty, this has to be

a movement. It's about

Build a movement

What is poverty?

Who is more at risk of living in poverty?

building a truly inclusive
city for all.”

Root causes of poverty and vulnerability

Poverty may be temporary — or not
ymay porary Mayor Don Iveson,

EndPovertyEdmonton
Meet four Edmonton families living in poverty Task Force Co-Chair

THE CASE FOR ENDING POVERTY

What does poverty mean in people’s lives?

SET PRIORITIES:

The EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy 20
PRIORITIES 23
Five criteria 23
Toward true reconciliation 25
Justice for all 29
Move people out of poverty 32
Invest in our poverty-free future 37
Change the conversation: Build a movementtoendpoverty 42
How the priorities can help our four families 44

KICKSTARTING A MOVEMENT:

Next Steps to Implement Change 47
Because we can: Cities are drivers of change 48
PRIORITIES AT A GLANCE - WHO TAKES THE LEAD? 50
THANK YOU 52
EndPovertyEdmonton 53
WORKING GROUP MEMBERS 54
REFERENCES 56
End Poverty in a Generation 3

Page 14 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



EndPoverty
Edmonton

PRIORITIES
AT A GLANCE

TOWARD TRUE RECONCILIATION

1. Establish an Aboriginal culture and wellness centre
Initiate people-first and trauma-informed policy and practice

Implement a community witness program

Wb

Provide opportunities where Aboriginal people in poverty
can “show and grow” their talents

5. Make systemic changes to better reflect the needs, interests
and culture of Aboriginal people

JUSTICE FOR ALL

Eliminate racism

N

Decriminalize poverty
8. Make it easier to vote and participate in elections

9. Make Edmonton a “human rights city”

MOVE PEOPLE OUT OF POVERTY

10. Advocate for livable incomes for Edmontonians
11. Make transit reliable, accessible and affordable for Edmontonians
12. Improve and expand transit services

13. Negotiate with other orders of government to increase funding for
affordable and supportive housing as well as rental subsidy programs

14. Develop a community-based learning group to look at housing and
zoning innovations

15. Improve skills training to help people gain sustainable employment
16. Improve literacy

17. Reduce barriers to getting information and accessing City programs
and services

18. Help people navigate systems in order to access resources
and opportunities

19. Improve timely access to mental health and wellness services

4 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Page 15 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



INVEST IN OUR POVERTY-FREE FUTURE

20.
21.

22.

23.
24.

25.

26.

27.

Grow social enterprises to build sustainable livelihood and assets

Invest in food security-oriented enterprises aimed at increasing food
access and gainful employment

Partner with community organizations and other stakeholders to create
a community development corporation

Plan and implement a system of early learning and care

Reduce barriers for children and families to access services, including
out-of-school care and respite care

Advocate to the provincial government for the implementation of
culturally sensitive curricula and for standards that require well-educated
staff in all early learning and care centres

Advocate to the provincial government for sustainable, predictable
and adequate funding for school-based wrap-around services

Keep the individual at the centre in providing care, services and supports

CHANGE THE CONVERSATION:
BUILD A MOVEMENT TO END POVERTY

28.

Launch a collaborative broad-based community engagement
and education initiative to change people’s attitudes about poverty

Why is it important
to eliminate poverty?

"The idea of merely
reducing poverty implies
that it is acceptable at
some level. Our numbers
tell the story and it is
obscene. We want a
community where everyone
has the opportunity to be

|u

successfu

Bishop Jane Alexander,
EndPovertyEdmonton
Task Force Co-Chair

End Poverty in a Generation

Page 16 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Photo provided by Boyle Street Community.
Services Artist in Residence Program "

“"About 70 per cent of the They are also often
gt supporting large families.
people who are living below et really

the poverty line are Working e addressed some of,:the
A deeper challenges.
often two or three jobs.

Mayor Don Iveson,
EndPovertyEdmonton Task Force
Co-Chair

6 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015



PAINT THE

PICTURE:

POVERTY IN
EDMONTON

19.5%

of all employed
Edmontonians earn

less than

$15/hr.

What is poverty?

Poverty is defined as when people lack, or are denied, economic,
social and cultural resources to have a quality of life that sustains
and facilitates full and meaningful participation in the community.

(Task Force definition, 2014)

The Cree word for “poor” is
okitimakisiw, which loosely translated
into English means “a person in need,
one who is poor,” or kitimakatchihow,
which means “he lives poorly” with no
direct reference to money.

You can be monetarily poor, but rich
with your traditions, culture and family
to sustain you. You can be monetarily
rich, but poor without a circle of true
friends or values to guide you.

For many Aboriginal people, these
terms also refer to loss of culture,
traditions, language and spiritual
connections. Being “poor” is about
missing out on someone’s potential,
gifts and talents, or losing access to
the wisdom of Elders or the support
of family.

In Edmonton, our definition is

about more than just money, because
poverty as experienced by diverse
Edmontonians — from First Nations
to newcomers — is more complex
than an economic circumstance.

When people live with poverty, they
have fewer choices and chances to
achieve their dreams, and a reduced
ability to contribute to society. By
necessity, they expend their energy
on survival. The daily stress takes

its toll. Children often don't receive
what they need to break free of the
cycle of poverty. Many feel defeated
before they enter adulthood. And the
cycle begins again.

End Poverty in a Generation

POVERTY EXISTS IN
EVERY PART OF OUR CITY

When thinking about poverty

in Edmonton, many of us picture
homeless people downtown. You
may be surprised to know that
poverty is experienced all over our
city. Some neighbourhoods have

a higher proportion of people in
poverty, but poverty is experienced
in every quadrant of our city.

MOST PEOPLE LIVING
IN POVERTY ARE
EMPLOYED - THEY ARE
THE WORKING POOR

Most Edmontonians have good jobs
and make decent wages. However,
in 2012, 12.3 per cent earned a low
income. Even after working full time
for a year, their salaries brought in
an annual income below the poverty
line. Poverty among those who
work exists because a significant
proportion of jobs are low-paying.
These low-paying jobs are often
precarious: lacking job security
without fixed hours of work and

with few or no benefits.

In 2013, over three-quarters

(75.2 per cent) of jobs in Edmonton
were in generally low-paying sectors
like retail, accommodation and food
services, janitorial, private security
and personal care.?

Page 18 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Who is more at risk of living in poverty?

The 100,870 people living with

a low income include...

» 42,200 persons in low-income
couple families

» 30,600 persons in lone-parent
families

» 26,070 single adults, and

» 2,000 others.

The highest poverty rate is
experienced by lone-parent families,

followed by single adults and then
couple families.

Several populations are over-
represented among our fellow
Edmontonians who live with poverty.
These are...

» Children and youth
» Aboriginal people
» Working poor

» Newcomers

» Women, and

» Persons with disabilities.

"“If | get sick for two weeks,
| lose my wages.”

“"Some of the hardest-
working people are paid
the least.”

Focus Group participants

Root causes of poverty

and vulnerability

EndPovertyEdmonton aims to eliminate poverty, not just manage
it or help people to cope with it. Therefore it is important to
understand the root causes of poverty. Where does it come from?
What conditions increase the probability of poverty? If we know
the answers to those questions, that should help us to identify
where to focus our work to end poverty.

Four sources of vulnerability can

increase the risk of poverty: “Poverty is not about

laziness, or having too
many children, or poor
people making poor
choices with their money.
The poverty of our fellow
citizens is a choice we,
all Edmontonians, make

» Personal vulnerability
» Life stages
» Disruptive events, and

» Systemic barriers.

every day when we don'‘t
demand something
different and better from
our politicians and policy
makers."

Sarah Eadie,
EndPovertyEdmonton
Task Force member

8 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Page 19 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



ROOT CAUSES
OF POVERTY

Sources of Vulnerability’

low education, lack of skills,
generational, language (ESL),
disability, women

migration, job loss, disability, children, youth
family breakdown, illness, seniors, parents
recession

household debt, access to services,
asset-stripping, discrimination/racism,
stagnant or low wages, credential recognition

*Source: Calgary Poverty Reduction Initiative, 2013



IN MARCH 2015,

WENT TO THE

FOOD
BANK.

of people served by
Edmonton’s food bank

under the age of 18.



Poverty may be temporary - or not

Poverty may be temporary or short
term for people who experience

a disruptive event, or whose
vulnerability is, for example, a

skill gap which can be learned
(transitional poverty).

Poverty may be persistent when
people experience a continuous spell
of low income lasting ten years or
more, caused by a combination of
many factors beyond the individual’s
control (chronic poverty).

62%

of low-wage
workers are

women.

Sometimes conditions of poverty
can be passed on to individuals,
families or communities trapped in
the complexity of poverty's causes
with little or no access to help get
out of it (intergenerational poverty).

Each type of poverty requires
different approaches in order to

end it. The priorities suggested later
in this report offer actions that can
impact different types of poverty.

/7%

of low-wage
workers are

20 years
or older.

“"Someone has a good
paying job and then
gets injured or ill. In that
situation, their assessed
income from the year

looks high, so they're not
eligible for help. There's
no safety net.”

Focus Group participant

“When | was back home

| used to own a big
business, would send

my kids to school, buy
whatever | wanted to buy
and help others. But when
| came here because of
war, everything was lost.
When | moved to Canada,
| was ‘supported’ instead
of ‘supporting.””

Focus Group participant

End Poverty in a Generation 11

Page 22 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



What does poverty mean in people’s lives?

Shared abundance and shared prosperity are about more than just
income. They are also about shared equity and shared opportunity.
Living in poverty impacts every aspect of people’s lives.

Fewer choices. When people

live with poverty, they have fewer
choices, less potential to achieve
their dreams and a reduced ability
to contribute to society.

Stress. By necessity, people living
in poverty expend their energy

on survival. When you are one
paycheque away from disaster,
simple things become complicated
and small things become big.

One fewer shift at your job, or one
unexpected expense, can shake
everything. The daily stress takes
its toll.

Poorer health. The World Health
Organization has declared poverty
to be the single largest determinant
of health. Poverty impacts health

in several ways.

When families are short of money
and they cannot lower expenses
for rent or public transit to get to
work and school, one of the first
places they cut expenses is on food.
Many turn to cheap starch products
since they cannot afford the cost of
healthier options such as fruits and
vegetables. There's no money for
prescription drugs or dental care
not covered by Alberta Health.
Poor nutrition and lack of medical
care impact health.

Factors such as these, combined

with ongoing grinding stress, can
lead to illness. In turn, illness can lead
to intensified poverty due to missing
work, resulting in decreased earnings
or being fired for absenteeism.

Children suffering. With the adults
in their lives being under constant
stress, children also feel the tension.
Parents working two or three jobs
may not have time or energy for

nurturing. The family may live in a
neighbourhood that feels unsafe,

so outdoor play is limited. Organized
sports or involvement in arts and
culture are not possible within the
family income. The prosperous-
appearing families they see in media,
or even among other children at
school, are nothing like those they
see around them. Children and youth
may feel defeated before they enter
adulthood - and the cycle continues.
Chronic stress also affects children’s
early brain development with
potentially lifelong consequences.

Growing inequality. Poverty does
not just impact individuals and
families; it impacts society as a
whole. Between 1982 and 2012,
the income of the top one per cent
of Edmontonians grew by 50 per cent
while the income of the remaining
99 per cent of Edmontonians
increased by less than ten per cent.*
This income gap shows a pattern
of growing inequality in our city.
This pattern is also occurring across
Canada.

History, and the experience of other
cities and countries, tells us that
growing inequality has a tipping
point that can have a disruptive
impact on society.

EndPovertyEdmonton priorities
include actions to address immediate
stressors while helping individuals
and families move out of, and stay
out of, poverty. These actions,
combined with other actions that
tackle root causes of poverty, will
close the door on poverty and
increase shared opportunity and
abundance for all Edmontonians.

12 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Page 23 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package

“As an emergency
medicine physician
practicing in a busy inner
city hospital, | see on a
daily basis the impact of
poverty on the health of
these individuals. This Task
Force to End Poverty is
bold, timely and can serve

as a catalyst and rallying
cry for much needed
societal change. Make no
mistake about it. Poverty
impacts your health —
almost always negatively.”

Dr. Louis Hugo Francescutti,
EndPovertyEdmonton
Task Force member




"Stress wears on you. The ripple effects...
either too stressed to eat well or can't
afford to eat well - a cycle of poor
emotional and physical health.”

Focus Group participant

End Poverty in a Generation




Meet four Edmonton
families living in poverty

Here are profiles of four Edmonton families who have experienced
life below the poverty line. These are real Edmonton families who
told their stories during recent research.® To protect their privacy,
the names of individuals have been changed.

MEET LING

Ling is an immigrant single mother
who gave birth to a daughter,
Katelyn, in Edmonton five years
after she arrived from China. She
was a teacher in China and has

had her credentials assessed by
Government of Alberta as equivalent
to that of a teaching certificate.
Initially, she had a lot of difficulty
securing employment because she
was unable to get suitable childcare
for her baby daughter, even for job
interviews. She is also entangled

in a child support lawsuit with her
daughter’s father, which is very
stressful for her. She takes transit to
her destinations, which is difficult in
winter with a baby. She eventually
determined the challenges of finding
work, transportation, childcare, and
the legal system to be too much and
made the difficult decision to send
Katelyn to China to live with Ling’s
parents. Since then Ling has taken
two jobs, both temporary, and works
seven days a week. She is currently
out of poverty.

EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

MEET JULIE AND NICK

Julie and Nick live in a north-central
neighbourhood with their three
elementary school-aged children.
Due to a workplace injury, Nick has
needed six operations and is no
longer is able to work. Julie works
part-time and, together with Nick’s
disability payments, they live below
the poverty line. Even though they
cannot always afford sufficient food,
they do not access the Edmonton
Food Bank, relying instead on
contributions from their church.

The family does not own a vehicle
and walks or takes the bus to get
places. Julie would like to take their
children to different city activities
during school holidays but cannot
afford the bus tickets. They own
their house; however, due to their
restricted incomes and Nick’s
disability, the family cannot complete
all the repairs that the house
desperately needs. Nicks receives a
notice from WCB stating his benefits
will soon stop. He is now looking
for work even though he is in no
condition to be working. Julie and
Nick are currently entrenched

in poverty.

Page 25 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



MEET CLAY

Clay is an Aboriginal single father
of two children under the age of
12. He is a very committed father
and likes to stay active with his
children. The family does not feel
safe in its neighbourhood since
there have been several stabbings
and assaults in the area. Clay does
not have much in the way of friends
and family. Despite a lengthy career
in construction, Clay got behind

in his bills after a brief period of
unemployment. He began working
again but, to get by, the family
accesses the Edmonton Food Bank.
During this time Clay is informed
by the after-school daycare that his
children are no longer welcomed
as the daycare is tired of dealing
with subsidy arrangements. Now
he has to work part-time to care

for his children, and is let go by his
employer one week later. Clay finds
new jobs, but has trouble keeping
them due to interpersonal conflicts.
He is eventually employed full-time
once again. Clay now struggles to
find help for his daughter, who has
just revealed she had been abused
when she was younger and living on
the reserve. Clay and his family cycle
in and out of poverty.

Page 26 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package

MEET KIM

Kim is a single mother of Euro-
Canadian background, who was born
and raised in Edmonton. Kim, along
with her teenaged son, Brandon and
preteen daughter, Erica, live with
her father in a two-bedroom home.
It is too small for the family and is

in need of major repairs; however
the rent is cheap. Despite a 13-year
history of paid employment, Kim is
currently not working due to multiple
physical and mental health issues.
Brandon, who has bipolar disorder
and is over six feet in height, has
been violent with both Kim and
Erica. After continuously missing
classes, he eventually drops out of
school, having achieved a Grade 9
level of education. The family does
not own a vehicle and struggles with
transportation. They are also reliant
on food banks, and the thrift stores
and the Goodwill for clothing. Kim
and her family are entrenched in
poverty.

Later in this document we will

see how the EndPovertyEdmonton
priorities have the potential to
improve the quality of life for Ling,
Clay, Julie and Nick, and Kim.

End Poverty in a Generation



Chronically homeless people
cost taxpayers directly and indirectly

over per person.

(Dt sts include mg yhlt and programming;
indirect costs include ectional, justi olh Ith system costs)

PROV\D\NG
SUPPORTS
& HOUSING

FOR A HOMELESS
INDIVIDUAL GENERALLY

COSTS ABOUT



THE CASE

FOR ENDING

POVERTY

THE ECONOMIC CASE

Poverty is currently one of the largest
burdens on the economic, healthcare

and criminal justice systems in Canada.

Finding realistic solutions to move
people out of poverty will save
taxpayers money in the long run.
We cannot afford to have people
live in poverty. It's that simple.

We can strengthen the economy

by helping unemployed or
underemployed people to get jobs
that support them and their families.
It will also reduce costs to taxpayers.
Our future economic growth is
dependent on continued labour
force expansion: we can ensure each
Edmontonian is equipped to play his
or her role.

Business and the not-for-profit
sectors stand to benefit from ending
poverty. Increased incomes mean
more purchasing power to buy

more goods and services. Workers
with adequate wages contribute

to increased productivity. The
leadership and innovation offered by
the business and the not-for-profit
sectors will be key to ending poverty.

Here are the facts.

» In 2011, the federal government
spent $19.9 billion on employment
insurance and an additional
$4 billion on transfers to low-
income families®.

» In Alberta, calculations have
shown poverty costs the province
between $7.1 and $9.5 billion
every year’.

That means poverty is costing
each adult Albertan between
$2,700 and $3,600 every year.

The cost of poverty is unsustainable.
It makes good business sense

to create a strong economic and
social legacy for future generations.
Investing in finding solutions will not
only yield a healthier, more engaged,
more productive populace, but it will
also save us money.

THE HUMAN RIGHTS CASE

Poverty is more than living with a lack
of income; it robs individuals to live

a life in dignity. We must affirm the
basic human rights and freedoms of
all Edmontonians to participate in
the civil, cultural, political, social and
economic dimensions of society.

If we do not acknowledge these
basic rights, we are tacitly accepting,
for example, that a child needs to
be “deserving” enough in order to
have adequate food, shelter and
educational opportunities.

Edmontonians and Canadians prove,
time and time again, that we believe
in the value and dignity of each
child — we only need our actions and
public policy to rise to that belief.

Ending poverty does not just mean
that individuals, families and children
have adequate income, housing and
food. It also means all people have
the opportunity to be engaged in
our city, to contribute to the solutions
and to be involved in shaping the
community we live in.

Together we must challenge
stereotypes and combat injustice

in every neighbourhood. Now is the
time for us all to share in Edmonton’s
prosperity.

"Because cities are

the crossroads where
resources and creativity
intersect, we become
labs where ideas reach
their tipping point and

become reality. Nowhere
is that more true than in
Edmonton.”

Mayor Don Iveson,
State of the City Address
May 2015

THE PUBLIC
OPINION CASE

Edmontonians do not need to be
convinced that addressing poverty
is a good idea.

A Leger survey of Edmontonians
in February 2015 showed strong
support for ending poverty.®

Is eliminating poverty a good
use of taxpayer dollars? YES.

» Seventy-two per cent of
respondents agreed that poverty
is a core issue in the city and it
should be prioritized.

» Ninety-four per cent believe
that eliminating poverty will
benefit society.

Can poverty really be eliminated? YES.

» Eighty-seven per cent of
respondents agreed that poverty
can be eliminated or drastically
reduced if enough efforts are made.

» Eighty-seven per cent of
respondents agreed that everyone
plays a role in ending poverty.

We have made the case to end
poverty. Now it's time to act.

End Poverty in a Generation 17

Page 28 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



We have

made the

case to end
poverty.

AT







SET PRIORITIES:
THE EndPovertyEdmonton
STRATEGY

EndPovertyEdmonton
TASK FORCE

In March 2014, EndPovertyEdmonton
was formed as a Task Force. The
mandate: develop a strategy to end
poverty in Edmonton within one
generation. The Task Force built on
the work of the previous Edmonton
Poverty Elimination Initiative which
was co-chaired by the United Way
Capital Region and the City.

In addition, EndPovertyEdmonton
acknowledges the Housing First
vision of Edmonton’s 10-Year Plan to
End Homelessness released in 2009.
Indeed, that provision of affordable
quality housing to those living in

the cycle of poverty is a pillar of
EndPovertyEdmonton’s work. Ending
poverty is a critical success factor
for achieving our city’s plan to end
homelessness.

EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

STATEMENTS OF BELIEF

From the beginning, the
EndPovertyEdmonton Task Force was
guided by these Statements of Belief:

» We believe that ending poverty
means supporting each and every
Edmontonian to feel included
and valued.

» We believe that finding solutions
involves the whole community —
most importantly Edmontonians
living in poverty.

» We believe that ending poverty
means changing hearts and minds
so, as a community, we can all
commit to ending poverty.

» We believe that investing in people
and communities is the right
thing to do - and it’s financially
responsible.

» We are in this for the long term:
poverty is complex, systemic and
deeply rooted.

» This is our opportunity to transform
our community: to think creatively
and take bold action.

The Task Force began by consulting
with two Round Tables, reviewing
past work and commissioning new
research. Most importantly, people
who were living with poverty talked
about the real, tangible things that
would make the greatest difference
to them. Based on what they learned,
the Task Force engaged roughly 200
people in seven Working Groups to
focus on specific aspects of poverty.

Page 31 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



FIVE DEFINING FEATURES

As information was generated from
research and the Working Groups,
the Task Force identified that its
strategy and priorities for action to
end poverty speak to five defining
features.

1.Honour the Treaty spirit

Our city has a surging number

of First Nations, Métis and Inuit
people who seek a bright future

in our city. Many of these people
have been dramatically affected

by the intergenerational trauma of
residential schools and assimilationist
policies, and poverty represents a
legacy of inequities and injustices
that continue today.

Edmonton is located on Treaty 6
territory, and City Council declared
2014-2015 a year of Truth and
Reconciliation in Edmonton. Mayor
Don Iveson points out, “we are all
Treaty people.” Starting from this
perspective, the EndPovertyEdmonton
strategy has been shaped by its vision
that Edmonton become a city where
all can enjoy prosperity and equity,

a city that lives and breathes the treaty
spirit, and a city that uplifts us all.

2.Change attitudes

EndPovertyEdmonton is about
actions, but we know that actions
grow out of beliefs and attitudes.
Only by correcting inaccurate
beliefs and changing attitudes
about poverty will our actions be
effective. Clear thinking based on
accurate information, and attitudes
of openness and willingness to
change will open up opportunities
for new solutions and innovations
to emerge.

3.Start a movement

Ending poverty in Edmonton is

not something that the Task Force —
or any group — can do alone. An
ambition like this must involve the
whole community in a movement
that takes on a life of its own. A
community champions a movement
in big and small ways because it
cares and it wants change. By actively
engaging all Edmontonians as part
of the solution, this grassroots
EndPovertyEdmonton movement

is the catalyst for change.

4.Tackle root causes

We need to address the systemic
underlying causes of poverty. While
we are taking action on behalf of our
most vulnerable people, we are also
working to address underlying issues —
racism, unresponsive systems, the
widening income gaps — that will

take longer to change.

5.Lever local partnerships

One of the things the Task Force
discovered during its work is how
quickly and easily new partnerships
can be formed. Most people want
to rally together. By connecting
them with others having different
perspectives, new possibilities
emerge. Within partnerships of
diverse stakeholders, we may
discover how to use technology in
new ways, or how to adapt concepts
from business, industry, philanthropy,
medicine, community development,
faith communities and education in
order to end poverty.

Why do you believe
we can end poverty
in a generation?

"We just have to. It's
not right to have people
wanting for the basics here

in Alberta. And particularly
for children — we need
to give them a chance.
We're all they've got.”

Justin Archer,
EndPovertyEdmonton
Task Force member

End Poverty in a Generation 21

Page 32 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Photo provided by United Way
of the Alberta Capital Region

“Many people who live in poverty are seen with disgust and disregard;
we needto address this before we can truly end poverty in Edmonton.

One way to promote dignity for all is to ensure
that individuals on the margins are heard and
included in speaking about the barriers they face.”

John Humphreys Centre, Youth Action Project on Poverty February 2015

22 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015



PRIORITIES

From the stories and experiences of people living with poverty,
from the research and background information, and from the
expertise and experience of the two Round Tables and seven
Working Groups, more than 80 recommendations and 400 actions
were generated. In order to determine priorities, the Task Force

used five criteria.

Five criteria

1. Foundational and sustainable
change - Recommendations that
focus on tackling root causes,
addressing systemic or structural
change and, if achieved, would on
their own contribute to eliminating
poverty in a measurable way,
fundamentally shift our thinking
and create lasting change.

2. Impact on vulnerable
populations - Recommendations
that will reach and improve the

lives of those who are most at-risk
of, or impacted by, poverty such

as Aboriginal people, children and
youth, working poor, newcomers,
women and persons with disabilities.

3. Upstream and prevention
focus - Recommendations that
make the most impact on people
and represent long-term thinking
to create conditions for all people to
enjoy healthy and prosperous lives.

4. Ripple effects - Recommendations
that are capable of linking with, and
influencing, other priorities, across
multiple areas and leverage other
efforts.

5. Achievable - Recommendations
and ideas that are tangible and
feasible.

Using the five criteria, the Task
Force arrived at a set of priorities
that represent actions and steps
needed to begin the work of
eliminating poverty. They include a
suite of policy initiatives, program
investments, service enhancements
and community-driven activities.
They address poverty from multiple
dimensions, including responding
to urgent and immediate needs,
removing barriers to change, and
tackling the root causes of poverty.

The priorities are closely linked

and they affect each other in many
ways. The priorities are grouped

to show how best to tackle urgent
needs, while working through those
that need more time to implement.
However, they are inter-related and
priorities listed in one section often
have relevance for those in other
sections.

The priorities are grouped into four
areas, with one overarching priority:
» Toward true reconciliation

» Justice for all

» Move people out of poverty

» Invest in a poverty-free future
Overarching priority:

» Change the conversation: build
a movement

As you review the priorities
you will see ways that you
can make an impact to
help end poverty.

End Poverty in a Generation

Page 34 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package

23



ITREATY
ROOTS

Beaver Hills, was the Cree
name for this place before
we knew it to be

EDMONTON IS ROOTED
IN ABORIGINAL HISTORY.

lts location was part of
an important Aboriginal

and served as

. which for
centuries has been a peaceful
and spiritual place of ,
and for

many Aboriginal peoples.

It was in this place that early relationships
led to the adhesion of Treaty 6, the Province
of Alberta, and the City of Edmonton.



Toward true reconciliation

We acknowledge that we reside on Treaty 6 territory and
together call upon honoured traditions and our spirit to maintain
a strong and lasting relationship between the City of Edmonton
and First Nations, Métis, Inuit and Non-Status Aboriginal peoples.

This relationship is embodied in
memoranda of relationships between
the Confederacy of Treaty 6 First
Nations and the City of Edmonton
as well as the Métis Nation of Alberta
and the City of Edmonton. These
agreements reflect the spirit of
mutual sharing and respect. As well,
City Council in 2005 affirmed its
commitment to building relationships
with Aboriginal peoples by a
declaration which:

» Acknowledges past injustices
from the legacy of colonialism
that created the unique challenges
facing Aboriginal peoples today

» Values and celebrates the unique
contributions of Aboriginal
peoples today in the areas of
enriching Canada'’s cultural identity,
advancing economic potentials
in workforce development and
improving quality of life for
Aboriginal children

» Recognizes that for many
Aboriginal people, self-governance
is rightfully viewed as a first step in
community capacity-building and
resolution of many of the issues
experienced by their communities.

Canada’s first peoples have endured
centuries of trauma, discrimination
and cultural genocide. Their stories
received the profile they deserve
through the Truth and Reconciliation
Commission and its 2015 report.
The legacy of the Indian Residential
School system and other government
policies and programs contributed
significantly to the reasons there

are proportionately more Aboriginal
people living with poverty than any
other demographic group.

Nearly 42,000 people in Edmonton
identify as Aboriginal.” Compared

to other Edmontonians, Aboriginal
people in Edmonton are nearly twice
as likely to be unemployed.

Further, 44 per cent of Aboriginal
children under the age of five live
in poverty'® which is more than
twice the proportion of other
Edmonton children.

Issues related to the physical,
mental, spiritual and emotional
needs of Aboriginal people need
to be addressed in order for those
living with poverty to improve their
quality of life.

"...No matter what | do.
My people have gone
through this forever — they
want to assimilate us. No
matter what | do —if | get a

job, mortgage, dog — it will
never be enough because
I'm Aboriginal...”

Focus Group participant

Discrimination plays an enormous
role when Aboriginal people try to
get a job, find a place to rent or
even walk down the street. Hurtful
assumptions are made, opportunities
are lost, and hope is abandoned.

The legacy of the residential schools
has inspired and emboldened
Aboriginal people to be hopeful

and resilient. The Aboriginal Round
Table, composed of members from
First Nations and Métis with diverse
backgrounds, worked hard to
engage Aboriginal communities to
develop their priority actions. These
priorities are important steps towards
a generational journey to healing,
improving well-being and building a
future of prosperity within mutual and
respectful relations between Aboriginal
and non-Aboriginal people.

End Poverty in a Generation 25

Page 36 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



We can - and must - change things. Here's what
the Task Force to End Poverty believes is important.

PRIORITIES

1. Establish an Aboriginal
culture and wellness centre

Ceremonies such as Pow Wows,
special gatherings, and weddings
would be hosted at an Aboriginal
culture and wellness centre. It will
also function as an Aboriginal “one
stop” service hub where vulnerable
people will be “wrapped around” with
many necessary resources (cradle
board) to enable them to improve
their lives significantly. Along with
having a suite of core Aboriginal
services, the centre would also

be able to have outside services
including, but not limited to, victim
services, housing, income support,
system navigators, and access

to Elders.

Additionally, the centre would work
with others for acquiring “spaces

in other places” to host programs in
the broader community. The centre
will provide Aboriginal people

more opportunities for culturally
appropriate healing practices and
teachings. Since colonization has
eroded many Aboriginal people’s
sense of self, it is vital to reclaim
cultural healing practices in order

to address the legacy of residential
schools. A holistic model such as the
Medicine Wheel is needed to identify
and address the effects of historical
and intergenerational trauma on

the spiritual, mental, emotional

and physical aspects of health.

2. Initiate people-first and trauma-
informed policy and practice

Racism and the impact of colonialism
are at the heart of poverty for
Aboriginal people. Greater
knowledge about these issues
among non-Aboriginal Edmontonians
can help foster better understanding
of the barriers facing Aboriginal
people. Policies and practices will

be developed that acknowledge
and incorporate the historical trauma
of Aboriginal people as a root cause
of poverty. It would seem timely

and appropriate in the year of
Reconciliation that a trauma-
informed training and education

for all City staff be both introduced
and adopted as a wise policy.

In the People-First philosophy,
people are at the centre of all
development and recognized as
active agents of change; it means
that Aboriginal peoples strengthen
themselves to be resilient, to take
control of their healing process
and build their lives in holistic

and culturally safe ways. It means
that solutions to end poverty will
be intentional in addressing what
matters most to Aboriginal people.

Trauma-informed practice offers
tremendous insights for both
frontline workers and managers into
the lives of those living with poverty.
This practice has an innovative lens
that encourages people to reflect

on what may have happened to
persons experiencing poverty, not
on what is wrong with them. There
are also benefits to receiving people-
first and cultural safety training that
are complementary to becoming
trauma-informed. This training would
be extended to the Edmonton Police
Service and advocated by the City

to the Government of Alberta for
trauma-informed staff training and
policy adoption.

26 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Calling upon our citizens to become
trauma-informed is important for
building cultural awareness that will
bring enlightening conversations and
perspectives on Aboriginal poverty.

3. Implement a community
witness program

The Truth and Reconciliation
Commission of Canada states that
the term “witness” refers to the
Aboriginal principle of witnessing,
which varies among First Nations,
Métis and Inuit peoples. In a general
sense, witnesses are called to be the
keepers of history when an event of
historic significance occurs. This is
partly because of the oral traditions
of Aboriginal peoples, but also to
recognize the importance of building
and maintaining relationships in-
person and face-to-face. Through
witnessing, the event or work that

is undertaken is validated and
provided legitimacy which

deepens our understanding.

Through the creation of a community
witness program, witnesses are
asked to store and care for the
history of significant events in

a person’s life (trauma, injustice,
sexual abuse, and even successful
achievements) that they witness,
and most importantly, to share it with
their own people when they return
home. Witnessing has significant
potential to transform people into
feeling valued in our community.

Page 37 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



4. Provide opportunities where
Aboriginal people in poverty
can “show and grow"” their
talents and abilities

A homeless man from Edmonton
became a viral sensation when

a video of his piano playing was
posted to YouTube. Within 24 hours,
it drew nearly 800,000 hits. A week
later, almost two million people

had watched the video worldwide.
Viewers posted many comments on
the quality of his skill and musicality.

His story speaks to the value of the
multitude of talents and abilities
that people living with poverty
have and how they can meaningfully
contribute to our community. This
can include opportunities to
showcase talents in public spaces
and promote with social media,
support venues for Aboriginal
business people to pitch their
ideas, and others.

COUNT ME IN!

Recognize we are all Treaty people. Read

Treaty No. 6 for yourself; it provides a guide
to how we all can cooperate and the role of
self-determination. For more information on

5. Make systemic changes to
better reflect the needs,
interests, and culture of
Aboriginal people

Initiate discussions with municipal,
provincial and federal governments
to reduce barriers to subsidies

and services. For example, income
ceilings and lack of a mailing address
are barriers to housing, food banks,
day care subsidies and funding.

Poverty, inadequate educational
opportunities, unemployment,

poor living conditions and domestic
violence all contribute to Aboriginal
people coming into conflict with the
law. The challenges to which the
criminal justice system must respond
are rooted in addressing these
unfortunate conditions.

"l would open a house for
women where they learn
how to cook, parenting

skills, life skills, and

financial management.”

Focus Group participant

These conditions are often linked to
the profound inadequacies of other
tax-funded systems including social
services, child protection, income
support, transportation education
and legal aid.

The myriad of conditions that
contribute to poverty can be greatly
affected if systems are easier to
access, apply for, and use.

HAVE AN IMPACT

Treaty 6, please go to jamessmithcreenation.com/

downloads/TREATY6TEXT.pdf.

Participate in people-first and trauma-informed
training opportunities.

Support local Aboriginal businesses. For more
information you can visit: aksis.website/

Be part of the development of a community
witness program in Edmonton.

Read Honouring the Truth, Reconciling for the

Future: Summary of the Final Report of the Truth
and Reconciliation Commission of Canada (2015)
to learn more about Aboriginal issues. Please go

to tre.ca.

Participate in Aboriginal events and cultural

experiences.

Host a viewing of the National Film Board's
documentary “Trick or Treaty” by Alanis Obomsawin.
Please go to nfb.ca/film/trick_or_treaty.

End Poverty in a Generation



www.jamessmithcreenation.com/downloads/TREATY6TEXT.pdf
www.jamessmithcreenation.com/downloads/TREATY6TEXT.pdf
www.trc.ca
www.aksis.website/
www.nfb.ca/film/trick_or_treaty

"Recognition of the inherent dignity and of the
equal and inalienable rights of all members of
the human family is the foundation of freedom,
justice and peace in the world...”

Universal Declaration of Human Rights

28 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015



Justice for all

Citizenship means that people have full rights and responsibilities
in the society to which they belong. Our rights and freedoms in
Canada are enshrined in federal and provincial legislation. But
what does that citizenship mean in practice? How can we ensure
the voices of those living with poverty are heard?

Poverty is more than a lack of
income — it is a barrier for people
to participate in the decisions that
affect their lives. For example, the
ability to vote that so many take
for granted is unavailable to many
living with poverty. Why? Voting
requires a permanent address and
identification.

Racism also affects many living with
poverty. Racist beliefs, attitudes,
and behaviours violate fundamental

principles of human rights relating
to respect, equality and dignity for
all. Confronting and eliminating
racism is a critical part of ensuring
that everyone can fully engage and
participate in our community.

The EndPovertyEdmonton Task
Force has identified this and other
issues that inhibit the ability of
people living with poverty to fully
participate in society.

In 2011, the average cost to keep

an individual INCarcerated
in a federal institution

" $130,305/yr angin

provincial

Institutions

"Being homeless increases
the likelihood of ending up
in jail, while imprisonment
increases the risk of
homelessness.”

John Howard Society

“It's hard when you don't

have an address or phone
number (or have a shelter
as an address). Employers
won't touch you.”

Focus Group participant

" $62 A15/yr.

End Poverty in a Generation

Page 40 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package

29



PRIORITIES

Reasons for non-voting

: — 6. Eliminate racism 7. Decriminalize poverty
in Alberta are indifference o , , o ,
o Racism is a set of beliefs, attitudes The justice system can work against
towards politics, lack of . .
) difficul ) and behaviors that assert one race the poor as they are often trapped in
e l. |.CU. Fy gettlng is superior to another because of a perpetuating cycle. Fines for minor
voter eligibility and did not their race, color or other physical violations turn into arrest warrants
know where to vote. characteristics. These attitudes and when there is no means of payment.
Parkland Institute Study, behaviors \{lolate funf:iamental tenets  These .wgrrants turn .lnto jail time
2015 of human rights relating to respect, and criminal convictions that further
equality and dignity for all. Aboriginal  dim their chances of acquiring the
people and visible minorities are necessary resources to bring them
among those who have experienced out of poverty.
discrimination that put them at risk of .
. B . Actions
poverty. Stopping racism begins by
learning about its history in Canada » Develop policies and amend
and in communities. Taking steps bylaws to provide Edmonton
to eliminate racism will remove Police Service, bylaw officers and
barriers to full participation by all other peace officers with structured
Edmontonians in community life. flexibility when issuing minor
infractions.

Actions ) :
» Develop alternatives to fines for

minor infractions that warrant
consequences, such as diversion
programs, mediation and other
restorative justice initiatives.

» Appropriately resource agencies
that support intercultural learning
related to Aboriginal history and
experiences of visible minorities,
particularly for new immigrants.

» Expand human rights, anti-racism
and intercultural competence
training programs for providers
of front-line services as well as
City and government workers.

» The City of Edmonton monitors
and reports on the diversity of its
workforce, particularly the gender
balance and ethnicity.

30 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Page 41 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



8. Make it easier to vote and
participate in elections

It is important for all people who
live in our city to have a say in how
the city is governed. Providing
easier access for those in poverty to
participate in the electoral process
will ensure the political landscape is
more reflective of all who live here.

Actions

» Develop participation toolkits
for organizations serving people
in poverty.

» Advocate to remove barriers
that hinder people’s ability to
participate in the electoral process
such as accessible, easy-to-read

resources, transit passes and more.

» Work with partners to increase
the number of Aboriginal
candidates, women, youth and
people with a range of ethnicities
including newcomers, to run for
elected positions.

COUNT ME IN!

9. Make Edmonton
a "human rights city”

By ensuring human rights are upheld
in Edmonton, we will make certain
that all citizens of every colour,
ethnicity, sexual orientation and
religious background have equal
access to the resources and
opportunities they need to reach
their full potential and participate
equally within in the community.

Actions

» Create and promote a Day of
Dignity to elevate the importance
of human dignities.

» The City of Edmonton initiate its
own statement of human rights
and review its policies and bylaws
to support this statement.

» Work with other orders of
government and utility providers
to identify regulations that mitigate
utility cut offs for people living
in poverty.

HAVE AN IMPACT

Start a conversation to better understand Recognize the human dignity in every person

the experience of people living with poverty. you meet.

Learn about the costs and impacts of poverty As a parent or teacher, take your kids to Edmonton

in our city.

City Hall School.

Advocate for anti-racism and intercultural Learn more about human rights at
competence training in your workplace. albertahumanrights.ab.ca.

End Poverty in a Generation


www.albertahumanrights.ab.ca.

“A living wage is not a
welfare program. It should
be based on what it costs
to live a reasonable quality
of life. A living wage
should allow parents to
invest in the future of their
children. If people don't

save for retirement, they
will cost society more
later on. Shouldn't a living
wage be about now and
tomorrow?”

Mark Holmgren,
EndPovertyEdmonton
Task Force member

Move people out of poverty

We know that 100,870 Edmontonians are living with low income -
one in eight adults and one in five children. Those who live with
low income have told us they struggle with five sources of

pressure on a daily basis.

Low income affects their ability
to afford:

» Adequate housing
» Transit fares

» Child care

» Food, and

» Medical and dental care not
covered by health care.

Some of the actions required to
relieve these pressures are beyond
the jurisdiction of the City of
Edmonton. However, as a community
we can still ease the pressure of
daily living while we work for longer-
term change. Actions that relate to
pressures caused by low income are
found in this “Move People out of
Poverty” section as well as the
“Invest in a Poverty-Free Future”
section which follows.

PRIORITIES

10. Advocate for livable incomes
for Edmontonians

A livable income is the amount of
income an individual or family needs
to meet basic needs, maintain a safe,
decent standard of living in their
community, and save for future needs
and goals. The Edmonton Social
Planning Council estimates that for

a family of four, both parents will
have to earn $17.36 per hour for

35 hours a week to meet the cost

of living in Edmonton.

The majority of Edmontonians who
live in poverty are full-time workers
earning less than $15 an hour. In
numerous consultations, those
receiving government transfers and
income support spoke of the gap
between what they are receiving
and the actual costs of daily living.

Livable Income

Providing livable income enables individuals and
families to maintain a decent standard of living. Raising
the minimum wage to that of a living wage and the
implementation of a guaranteed annual income can
be two tools to improve economic security of those

in poverty. Providing a guaranteed annual income
can also assist those who may not be able to enter
the workforce due to age, disabilities, criminal records,
mental health, etc.

Living Wage

A living wage is a community-specific hourly rate at
which a household can meet its basic needs once
government transfers have been taken into account.

It is calculated on the actual local costs of food,

rent, utilities, clothing, child care, transportation and
communications. A living wage is a current and realistic
picture of what it actually costs a household to maintain
a modest standard of living. While it covers the basic
necessities it does not account for debt payments,
savings, vacations or post-secondary education.

Guaranteed Annual Income

Guaranteed Annual Income intends to ensure that all
citizens have access to modest but adequate income
to meet basic needs.This can be done by a providing
all citizens the same lump sum cheque every month
or providing a lump sum cheque to those that meet
certain requirements. Similar terms include mincome
(minimum income), universal basic income and
guaranteed adequate income.

Sources:
Edmonton Social Planning Council Report
on Minimum Wage. 2015

Canadian Centre for Policy Alternatives on
Living Wage. 2015

Citizens for Public Justice. Income Security
for All Canadians. 2015

EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Page 43 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




Actions

» Implement a living wage policy
for all City of Edmonton staff and
contracted services.

» Implement a recognition program
for businesses that provide living
wages for workers.

» Advocate for a guaranteed annual
income that allows individuals and
families to meet their physical,
emotional and social needs.

» Encourage employers to provide
employee benefits and incentives
that support sustained employment
such as child care and supplemental
health and dental care.

11.Make transit reliable,
accessible and affordable
for Edmontonians

Public transportation is a critical
service for citizens to get to and
from work, to shop for basic needs,
to attend to health needs, and
participate in community life.
Accessible and affordable transit
will make it easier for Edmontonians
to get to work, school, recreation,
and support services.

Families living in poverty often
depend on public transit. For a family
of two adults and two school-age
children, the cost of monthly adult
and youth transit passes is $316. For
a family outing of two adults and two
school-age children, the return trip
cash fare is $25.60. These are high
costs for a low-income family.

Actions

» Free public transportation
for children 12 years and under,
rather than the current six years
and under today.

» Provide discounted or free passes
for agencies to provide to youth
at risk.

» Institute a low-income bus pass
with a 60 per cent discount,
consistent with the AISH
(Assured Income for the Severely
Handicapped) pass, based on the
same criteria as the City’s existing
Leisure Access Program.

12.Improve and expand
transit services

Connecting the city with its
neighbouring municipalities
strengthens its role as a northern
regional hub through an expanded
transit system. It helps Edmontonians
who work outside city limits, to get
to their workplaces and Aboriginal
people to find opportunities in the
city without having to move from
reserves if they don't wish to.

Actions

» Introduce easy-to-purchase
“smart cards” which can be
used to pay for transit trips.

» In partnership with other regional
and industry stakeholders, expand
transit service to nearby worksites.

» In partnership with other regional,
governmental and First Nation
stakeholders, consider expanding
transit service to nearby First
Nations reserves.

» Make transit routes, scheduling
and frequency more responsive
to shift work hours.

» Expand LRT network across all
parts of the city.

13.Negotiate with other orders
of government to increase
funding for affordable and
supportive housing as well
as rental subsidy programs

Edmonton has a significant shortage
of supportive housing options for
people with mental illness, addictions
and disabilities. A disproportionate
number of homeless people have

these challenges. Providing people
with supportive housing will cost
less than half of what it costs to
leave homeless people on the

street. A report from Homeward Trust
notes that a homeless person costs
taxpayers $100,000 a year in terms
of emergency shelters, programming
and health care. Providing a homeless
person with housing and support
costs only $35,000 a year.

Rent subsidies are the quickest form
of affordable housing to implement,
and they support inclusive and
diverse neighbourhoods throughout
the city. Rent subsidies directly
address the problem of limited
income for those who are not earning
enough to cover the cost of living.
They also contribute to reducing the
geographic concentration of poverty
as people have more housing
locations.

Actions

» Ensure sufficient land and suitable
sites for supportive and affordable
housing, including designating
some of the surplus school sites
and reserving land in all new
neighborhoods for this purpose.

» Advocate for new and expanded
current subsidy programs, such
as a financial program to cover
damage deposits for low-income
renters.

» Explore new and innovative ways
to build non-market housing that
does not require subsidies.

» Engage citizens and communities
in awareness and education about
non-market housing.

End Poverty in a Generation 33

Page 44 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



14.Develop a community-based
learning project to look at
housing and zoning innovations

Housing should not just be affordable
but also responsive to changing
needs of the population. Different
types of housing are appropriate
for larger families, single individuals,
older adults and people with
disabilities. Diverse housing design
options should be explored with
the possibility of adapting some
options to a larger scale if they
prove to be feasible.

Actions

» Examine creative housing design
options done in other places such
as tiny houses, pod apartments,
lodge-type facilities, green housing
options, and temporary modular
housing.

» Look into changing zoning
regulations that can meet
innovative housing design
requirements such as building
height, stairways, and
emergency exits.

» Design housing units that also
support community-building
through features such as co-
location of child care facilities,
social services, and recreation
activities.

15.Improve skills training to
help people gain sustainable
employment

Job-readiness for those unemployed
and underemployed is a priority to
find work and stay in them. It is well
known that among underemployed
workers in the city, internationally
trained professionals are those that
are most impacted. They end up

in low-paying jobs because of the
length and stringent requirements
of getting professional accreditation.

The City of Edmonton and businesses

can lead by example in creating
opportunities for newcomers to
find suitable employment.

Actions

» Increase the number of paid

internships within City departments

for qualified newcomer residents
seeking to build their Canadian
work experience.

» Advocate for increased access to
bridging programs that support

internationally trained professionals

to enter regulated professions.

» Advocate for targeted employment

support strategies for those who
face labour market barriers
through a tripartite partnership
with businesses, agencies and
the Province.

“Where you conduct
business, you have a duty
to serve the city that you

are living in, the community
you are living in.”

Edmonton entrepreneur

34 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

16.Improve literacy

Research consistently shows that
people with lower levels of literacy
need hospitals and financial
assistance programs more than
people with higher literacy levels.
People with low literacy skills are
also more likely to have a low
income, and more likely to

spend time in jail.

Further, employers now seek
workers with a sophisticated

set of skills that include decision-
making, teamwork, problem-solving,
leadership, information technology,
communicating effectively and

a desire to learn. Fewer jobs are
available to people with low
literacy skills.

Actions

» Work with Edmonton Public Library
and other organizations, including
schools and places of worship, to
establish multi-purpose community
centres where learners are able
to get help in navigating systems,
access community learning
programs, increase literacy skills
and thereby open more doors to
higher-income employment.

» Advocate for increased provincial
investment in literacy development
programs for families and adults
struggling with literacy.

Page 45 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



“Education and
literacy are the
most important
springboards
out of poverty...

Knowledge and learning are keys that unlock the
doors to both economic wealth and social well-
being....Basic educational success and literacy
proficiency are not just a good thing — they are
essential in a knowledge economy.”

Caledon Institute of Social Policy'

End Poverty in a Generation 35



17.Reduce barriers to getting
information and accessing
City programs and services

Limited knowledge about City of
Edmonton services and programs
remains a significant barrier to using
them, especially for those who have
limited literacy or English language
skills. Many Edmontonians have
difficulty applying for subsidized
programs because the programs
are each administered separately
and the application process is
cumbersome and tedious. These
are barriers to participation in City
programs, initiatives, events and
community engagement processes.

Actions

» Create a one-access card that
can be used for all City programs
and services.

» Make it easier for people to apply
for subsidized programs using a
single entry process.

» Explore multiple forms of
communicating City programs and
services to diverse Edmontonians.

» Design new ways of engaging
people living in poverty and those
with barriers to participation in
City consultation and engagement
processes.

COUNT ME IN!

Support businesses that pay a living wage
and encourage businesses to pay a living wage.
You can learn more about Edmonton’s living wage

at edmontonsocialplanning.ca.

Be an advocate for inclusive housing and mixed

income communities.

18.Help people navigate systems
in order to access resources
and opportunities

The Families First Edmonton study"
showed that low-income families who
had a worker to help them navigate
the complex web of programs and
services have better opportunities
for improving their life situations.

This finding was echoed in a series
of engagement sessions with over
200 people living in poverty. In
community discussions, participants
living in poverty said that having
access to support workers was a
significant factor in helping them
have a better chance of moving

out of poverty. These workers stayed
with them for a lengthy period of
time as the family moved in and out
of crisis, doing their best to find ways
to access resources from the system.

Actions

» Strengthen current community-
based local navigation and
supports initiatives.

» Bring agencies, and government
funders and departments together
to design a social innovation
initiative to show effectiveness
of navigation support practice
across sectors — health, social
services, employment and legal/
justice system.

19.Improve timely access to mental
health and wellness services

The area of mental health remains
one where the need for services

far outpaces the supply of available
services, especially “talk services.”
Access to mental health care is
restricted by the high cost of private
mental health services which makes

it rarely accessible to low-income
individuals and families. Low-income
persons need more access to
prevention-oriented mental health
services that take into account the
challenges of poverty while promoting
a range of healthy lifestyle behaviours,
better coping skills, and good
interpersonal and relationship skills.

Actions

» Advocate for improved ways of
providing mental health services
such as extending hours of service
and the locations of services, and
permitting multiple points of
access, etc.

» Advocate for increased funding
and support for mental health
and wellness education programs.

» Advocate for increased

coordination and integration of
children’s mental health services.

HAVE AN IMPACT

As a business person, be a mentor and share your
business expertise with organizations that find new
solutions to poverty.

Volunteer with an organization to teach literacy skills.

As an employer, create healthy workplaces
and encourage employees to build their skills.

EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Speak out to reduce the stigma around mental health.



www.edmontonsocialplanning.ca

Invest in our poverty-free future

Ending poverty in Edmonton in a generation calls for fresh new
approaches. The priorities in this section speak to new ideas and
ways of working. They will help transform our economy for the
long term and ensure our children have a strong start.

Actions to invest in a thriving,
innovative local economy will support
greater prosperity and security for

all Edmontonians. Social enterprise,
grassroots entrepreneurship and new
business models and partnerships
offer opportunities to transform our
local economy. Investing both human
and financial capital in sustainable
new approaches will have a positive
impact on people’s lives.

Ending poverty is also intimately
linked to investing in quality child care
and early learning — investment that
will deeply impact the success and
quality of life of our next generation.
We know education is a tool to move
people — and keep people — out

of poverty. Supports to provide a
nurturing learning environment from
the earliest ages will offer a solid
start and ensure our children get to
school, stay in school and complete
their education.

PRIORITIES

20.Grow social enterprises to
build sustainable livelihood
and assets

Social enterprises or social business
models are an emerging approach
adopted by corporations around the
world to practice social responsibility
beyond philanthropy. According

to the Harvard Business Review in
March 2015, a social enterprise has
three characteristics:

1. It seeks to alleviate social
problems, including all forms
of poverty;

2. It must be run sustainably —
not lose money; and

3. Profits are reinvested in the
business rather than shareholders.

In Edmonton, the full development of
social enterprises is confronted with
many challenges: complicated and
costly requirements to start-up a new
business and limited funding through
income-generating loans. More often,
funds and resources are directed

to students with entrepreneurial
interests, or technologically inclined
and highly skilled individuals. As such,
there are few opportunities for low-
income individuals to have access

to resources to start a small business.

v

v

v

"A better society means
better business. A better
society means a better

government and better
place to live for everyone.”

Edmonton entrepreneur

Actions

Collaborate with the City’s
Emerging Economy and Ignite
Edmonton initiatives to ensure
that inclusive language and access
points are used to reduce barriers
to entrepreneurship.

Invest in funding and programs to
build the entrepreneurship capacity
of low-income Edmontonians.

Apply lessons learned about
business models that feature
market-based solutions to poverty
and reinvestment of profit in the
business.

Collaborate with the business
sector to open opportunities

for social enterprise support
including business partnerships,
small business loans and business
mentoring programs.

End Poverty in a Generation 37

Page 48 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



38

How has poverty
impacted you?

“The food bank is where
people would go when
they don't have food, and
a long time ago, | went

there because my dad was
in our home country and
no one in our family was
allowed to work.”

Child Focus Group
participant

21.Invest in food security-oriented
enterprises aimed at increasing
food access and gainful
employment

Many families living in poverty struggle
to get adequate and healthy food. In
a recent survey across the province,
almost two-thirds of school principals
surveyed say teachers are providing
“emergency food” to hungry
students in Alberta classrooms.

More than accessing food, the idea
of a food systems enterprise creates
opportunities for employment and
livelihood. Food systems enterprises
are comprehensive businesses that
include community-supported food
production, food-processing, food
distribution and marketing (support
for farmers markets) and farmer-to-
table restaurants. These initiatives
can help all people eat healthily.
This grassroots initiative can be
considered as a “niche of innovation”
that combines alleviating a basic
need while advancing activities that
have the potential for transforming
social and economic situations of

people.
Actions

» Advocate for lunch programs
in all schools.

» Work with the Edmonton Food
Council and other partners to:

- support community gardens
to expand their expertise into
food-processing ventures;

- make more land available for
community gardens and/or
connect Edmontonians that
have available land to those
interested in growing food for
food systems enterprises;

- organize business-community
partnerships to start-up food
systems enterprises; and

- offer community education
programs on all aspects of food
security (food production, food
processing, distribution and
healthy eating).

EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

22.Partner with business, industry,
community organizations and
other stakeholders to create
a community development
corporation

Edmonton’s low-income
neighbourhoods struggle to find

or organize the human, financial or
technical resources needed to tackle
poverty. These neighbourhoods often
have absentee and/or unresponsive
landlords, high-priced convenience
stores and pay day loan and cheque-
cashing services that add more
expenses to the already limited income
of families. Residents often face a lack
of living wage jobs, few affordable
housing options, and a shortage of
basic services such as grocery stores
and banks. As well, there are very few
services that provide job training and
access to living wage jobs.

A strategy is needed that allows low-
income communities to participate
in finding solutions and taking
actions on the challenges that they
face every day. It means mobilizing
the right people and resources to
provide the tools required to enable
communities to thrive locally and be
part of Edmonton’s prosperity.

Actions

» Establish a community
development corporation (CDC)
that can provide the infrastructure
and sophistication needed to
engage the community to take
on these challenges by:

- supporting the creation of
affordable and supportive housing;

- offering job training/placement,
investing in appropriate
community based business
development; and

- creating new community-owned
businesses.

The CDCs will be engines of
development and economic
opportunity that require significant
start-up capital and the focused
deployment of equity, debt,

and grant funding. Although
municipalities often play a pivotal
role in starting CDCs, these
organizations most commonly
operate at arm’s length from city
government.

Page 49 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



“The period from birth to the beginning of formal schooling provides the foundations
fora lifetime of intellectual, social, emotional and personal development.

High-quality earlydearning and care - in centres,
day homes or with families or kin — contributes
greatly to early development and incorporates
ample opportunities for children to learn the
skills they need to succeed.”

Early Childhood Development Working Group

End Poverty in a Generation 39



23.Plan and implement a system
of early learning and care

In Alberta, no single ministry and
no order of government has the
clear mandate to provide for the
overall welfare of young children.
An integrated system of learning
and care is critically needed,
especially for families in poverty
or at risk of falling into it. Plus, an
integrated system of support for
early learning and care is one that
helps every child build the core
competencies needed to thrive.

A comprehensive system should
include centre-based care, day
homes, respite care, kinship care,
and other forms of care for young
children, as well as supports for stay-
at-home parents and for the people
outside children’s homes who work
with young children. This system
must ensure early learning and care
that is high in quality, universally
available, inclusive, accessible to all

families, and either free or affordable.

Early learning and care must also
be designed to meet the needs

of Edmonton’s Aboriginal families,
immigrant and refugee families,
and families with children who have
special needs.

Actions

» The City works with the provincial
government and other partners to
identify the unmet needs for high-
quality early learning and care to
serve young children and families,
with special regard to Aboriginal
families, newcomer families, and
children with disabilities.

» The City and its partners develop
and implement a plan to address
those needs and to coordinate
and improve services, such as
through a municipal early learning
care service network and a
municipal early learning and
care advisory board.

24.Reduce barriers for children
and families to access services,
including out-of-school care
and respite care

In Edmonton, and much of Alberta,
care for children prior to school
entry is fragmented and insufficient.
Supports for stay-at-home parents,
including respite care, are much

in demand but difficult to find.
Centres typically are not available
in low-income areas where the
need is particularly high. Costs

are prohibitive and subsidies are
insufficient for many low-income
families.

A research project known as
Families First Edmonton identified
the frustrations that many low-
income parents experience in finding
accessible, affordable and quality
child care.

Actions

» The City and other partners work
together to coordinate welcoming
and effective services for children
and their families who are living
with poverty.

» Advocate for sustainable,
predictable and adequate funding

for early learning and kindergarten,

and programs that help children
living with poverty.

» Create neighbourhoods hubs
where educational, social and
health services can be co-located,
particularly in underserved areas.

Poverty is...

“They're homeless and
hungry. All the food
we waste would mean

something to them,
and love would be very
powerful to them.”

Child participant in a focus
group®

40 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

25. Advocate to the provincial
government for the
implementation of culturally
sensitive curricula and for
standards that require well-
educated staff in all early
learning and care centres

Appropriate curricula are essential
for ensuring high-quality early
learning and care and for helping

all children and their families to

feel welcomed and valued. The
province needs to have a long-term
educational strategy and regulations
to ensure that well-trained and well-
paid early childhood educators are in
place to make the best use of these
curricula. The provincial government
and the municipality need to work
together to generate the fiscal and
regulatory resources required for
high-quality early learning and care.

Actions

» Advocate to the Province to
develop a culturally sensitive
curricula and standards for all
early learning and care centres.

» Advocate to the Province to
develop a workforce strategy
for implementing the culturally
sensitive curricula, incorporating
the demand for high quality early
learning and care.

» Advocate with the Province to
generate the fiscal and regulatory
resources to implement and
sustain implementation of the early
learning and care system in the city.

Page 51 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



26. Advocate to the provincial
government for sustainable,
predictable and adequate
funding for a school-based
"wrap-around” services

School-based “wrap-around” models
provide a wide range of supports,
programs and services for students
to meet the educational needs of
the learner, the complex needs of
the whole child and the broader
supports required by the family. This
may include nutrition programming,
therapy, mental health and addiction
support, after-school enrichment,
child care and parent supports. It is
a successful model implemented in
the US, UK, Australia, Netherlands
and other countries for vulnerable
populations. Successes of wrap-
around full-service schools include
academic gains, improvement in
school attendance, reduction in
high-risk behaviours, increased parent
involvement, lower incidence of
child abuse and neglect, and lower
rates of violence in the participating
communities. It should be made
available to children K-12.

COUNT ME IN!

business or community.

Actions

» Review initiatives of school-based
wrap-around models in Alberta
and Edmonton.

» Design a school-based wrap-
around program within an
Edmonton context.

» Collaborate with the school
boards and community partners
in advocating for funding and
resources to implement the
school-based wrap-around model.

27.Keep the individual at the
centre in providing care,
services and supports

Many service providers are
overwhelmed or underfunded

and as a result are often slower

in responding or their supports

are inadequate in scope. As a
consequence, many low-income
people report waiting too long for
counselling, family violence shelter
space, and basic and/or specialized
medical care. The lack of sufficiently
co-ordinated and collaborative efforts
between community agencies results
in a fragmented system of care.

A person-centered and holistic
approach to health and wellness takes
into account the complex needs of
low-income individuals and families.
It is responsive to the individual as

a whole person — his/her needs and
capacities to take control of his/her
care well-being.

Actions

» Expand and increase funding for
programs that have been effective
in providing person-centred care
to low-income people.

» Make it easier to coordinate
services for vulnerable populations
with complex issues.

» Explore ways to make services
accessible and easy to navigate
such as decentralizing services
and co-location of services.

» Collaborate with Aboriginal
communities in making programs
and services culturally responsive.

» Include anti-racism and intercultural
competence education in training
and professional development
of all those providers.

HAVE AN IMPACT

As an entrepreneur or business person, get
involved in mentoring community groups to create
social enterprises that alleviate poverty, pay for
themselves and allow for reinvestment in the

Participate in a workshop that helps you relate
and work effectively with people from diverse
backgrounds.

Advocate for early learning and care and school-

based wrap-around services.

Learn about food security issues and initiatives

in Edmonton.

Check out endpovertyedmonton.ca for other ideas.

Donate healthy and nutritious foods or help

with a community garden.

Volunteer for an early childhood learning

or care organization.

End Poverty in a Generation



www.endpovertyedmonton.ca

Change the conversation:
Build a movement to end poverty

Ending poverty in Edmonton is not something that the Task Force —
or any group — can do alone. To be successful, an ambition like this
must involve the whole community and generate a sense of civic

"Education is the key in
eliminating poverty. Only
if people understand

imperative and pride in the collective aspiration.

A movement is not a plan or a
campaign - it's something that
emerges from the community and
takes on a life of its own. It is an
idea that a community champions in
big and small ways because it cares
and desires change. The movement
creates spaces in neighborhoods
where everyone can be part of the
conversation. It will build groups and
communities that are empowered,
resilient and able to take actions to
end poverty locally and within the
greater Edmonton community.

Already more than 200 people are
involved in the EndPovertyEdmonton
Task Force, Roundtables and Working
Groups. Many more are poised to be
part of the ground-level engagement
in the fall of 2015. Still more will be
part of a broad-based movement as
the EndPovertyEdmonton strategy
and plan are completed.

We will work with others to build a
movement that will capture the hearts
and minds of all Edmontonians. To do
this, we need to equalize opportunity
for people to reach their full potential
by harnessing necessary human
capital and financial resources. The
goal of the movement is to change

COUNT ME IN!

Challenge your own perceptions of poverty
by participating in the United Way’s poverty
simulation exercise. Please check dates at
myunitedway.ca/poverty-simulation.

the conversation from managing

poverty to ending it poverty with

three objectives:

1. Enable Edmontonians to re-frame
how they see and respond to
poverty;

2. Mobilize Edmontonians to be part
of or take actions on solutions; and

3. Engage other Edmontonians to
join the EndPovertyEdmonton
movement.

EndPovertyEdmonton must start
with people impacted by poverty
and to whom solutions to end
poverty will matter the most. The
movement creates space and ways
that make it easy for people living
with poverty to be part of the
conversation. From their voices,
Edmontonians can understand that
each one of us has a role to play in
eliminating poverty and that this is
within our grasp.

PRIORITY

28.Launch a collaborative broad-
based community engagement
and education initiative to
change people’s attitudes
about poverty

something can they
act for change!

“Let us talk to them, let
us tell them our stories. ..
voice our concerns to
leaders and politicians.”

Focus Group participant

Actions

Build on and strengthen local
creative initiatives that maximize
opportunities to re-frame the
poverty dialogue using diverse
tools and media i.e. storytelling,
poetry and music, indigenous art,
theatre, music and dance.

Organize community conversations
on resilience and strengths,
discrimination and racism.

Integrate education about poverty
into all levels of the education
curriculum from grade one to
university.

Build a new language around
poverty to remove fear and stigma.

HAVE AN IMPACT

EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Develop empathy. Volunteer in organizations that
serve the homeless and those struggling with poverty.

Use your creative skills in art, video, music or
writing, to foster new understanding of poverty
and prosperity.



www.myunitedway.ca/poverty-simulation

Photo provided by Bissell Centre

“As we intentionally hear and gather the lived experience of those who live in poverty,

| learn more about the importance of the

deep and committed engagement of those
living in poverty in a genuine process of
citizen participation,

a continued process of learning from them and involving them in decision-making.”

Yvonne Chiu, EndPovertyEdmonton Task Force member

End Poverty in a Generation 43



YR Reget

How the priorities can help our four families

LING

Ling is a single mother who had to
send her daughter back to China. An
improved and more accessible and
affordable transit system (#11, #12)
would make things much easier for
Ling from getting to and from work,
to getting groceries and to other
appointments (e.g., for her lawsuit).

A living wage policy as well as
employment programs (#10, #15)
could help Ling so that she no longer
has to work two jobs and can instead
gain a sustainable full-time job that
would allow time for rest and other
activities.

With a living wage, more secured
income (through more secured
employment and child support
payments), as well as access to an
integrated system of early care
(#23, #24), Ling would be able to
bring her daughter home and plan
for their future together.

JULIE AND NICK

Julie and Nick have three young
children. Because of an injury,
Nick cannot work.

High-quality early learning and
school-based services (#23, #24,
#26) could help Julie and Nick’s
children prepare themselves for a
better future as the family struggles
with the challenges of poverty and
disability.

Having someone to guide Julie and
Nick through various government
and community programs (#18)
would help Nick access and receive

available support and resources for
his disability so he is not forced to
re-enter the workforce before he

is ready and able to do so.

Affordable transit services (#11) as
well as a one-access card (#17) would
allow Julie and Nick to take their
children to different city activities and
facilities. This could restore a degree
of childhood joy in the children’s
lives, something that was so abruptly
taken from them since their father’s
workplace injury and disability.

CLAY

Clay is an Aboriginal single father
of two school-age children.

Skills training programs (#15) and
access to affordable, flexible, and
reliable system of early learning and
care (#23, #24) could greatly benefit
both Clay and his children. Clay may
be able to keep his job and therefore
sustain, or even improve, his family’s
income level, and his children’s
development would be better
supported.

Access to mental health and wellness
services that are individual-centred
and trauma-informed (#19, #27) may
help the family cope with the abuse
that Clay's daughter endured and
ensure the family gets the necessary
supports going forward.

An Aboriginal culture and wellness
centre (#1) would be another
valuable resource for the hard-
working single father as he strives
to work on the family’s issues and
provide the best that he can for
his children.

44 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

KIM

Kim is the single mother of a teenage
son and pre-teen daughter, living
with her father in a small two-
bedroom home.

Improving transit and making it
more accessible and affordable
(#11, #12) would make it easier for
Kim and her family to get to medical
appointments and to school.

In addition, having more affordable
housing options (#13, #14) would
allow the family to improve its living
conditions.

Due to Kim’s mental health issues
and Brandon’s bipolar disorder and
violent behaviours, the family is in
desperate need of timely mental
health and wellness services (#19).
These services would help improve
Kim's health condition, and may one
day help her return to the workforce.

In addition to mental health services,
Brandon may also benefit from
having school-based wrap-around
services (#26) that could help him
return to and stay in school, and help
Kim and himself manage his bipolar
disorder and violent behaviours.

The family would also benefit from
having someone help navigate
different systems in order to access
needed services (#18). Together the
services could greatly improve the
outlook for Brandon'’s future and the
quality of life for the entire family.

Page 55 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



SIX GAME
CHANGERS

Research indicates ELIMINATE RACISM
that there are six

key areas of actions LIVABLE INCOMES

that will make a AFFORDABLE HOUSING
significant difference
to individuals and ACCESSIBLE &

families struggling AFFORDABLE TRANSIT

with pov :
i poverty AFFORDABLE &
QUALITY CHILD CARE

ACCESS TO MENTAL
HEALTH SERVICES

AND ALONG WITH
OTHER LONG-TERM ACTIONS

WILL END POVERTY.



"It Wi" take a Taking these steps will mean real progress

community working

in one of the boldest collective approaches
we've ever seen; moving beyond managing

together to SOIVe the symptoms of poverty and delivering

the many complex
issues connected

solutions that move us closer to ending it.”

Anne Smith, EndPovertyEdmonton Task Force member

to poverty.

46

EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

ell Centre



KICKSTARTING
A MOVEMENT:
NEXT STEPS

TO IMPLEMENT
CHANGE

This report is just the beginning. It is the culmination of
months of work and helps to define what we need to do.

ENGAGE THE PUBLIC

Fall 2015 will see a series of public
engagement activities to review and
test the ideas in this strategy. After
the public engagement activities
and further review of these priorities,
an updated EndPovertyEdmonton
Strategy will be submitted to City
Council in December 2015.

COMPLETE AN
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN

How we take on this work will

be the focus of a comprehensive
implementation plan that will spell
out the steps needed to carry

out the priorities, as well as the
specific measures of progress.
The EndPovertyEdmonton Task
Force will provide oversight of the
implementation planning process,
guided by the experience of people
living in poverty and informed by
policy, research and practice.

This ten-year plan will be presented
to Edmonton City Council for their
approval in Spring 2016.

The implementation plan will outline:

» Goals and objectives of the
plan (What will be achieved
in ten years?)

» Phasing of priority actions
(How will actions be phased
within a ten-year timeline?)

» Governance structure (Who is
responsible for the leadership
and stewardship of implementing
the plan)

» Accountability (Who is responsible
for which actions?)

» Resources (What is needed
and where will it come from?)

» Measuring progress and success
(What are the outcomes and how
will we know we have achieved
our goals and objectives?)

» Engagement and communication
strategy (How will we engage and
mobilize Edmontonians in the
EndPovertyEdmonton movement?)

End Poverty in a Generation 47

Page 58 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Because we can:

MEASURING SUCCESS

EndPovertyEdmonton will adopt

a suite of poverty measures that
capture the economic and social
impacts of poverty. It will allow us
to collect data which are comparable
nationally and internationally,

but which can also measure our
progress in poverty elimination.
These measures include:

» Low Income Measurment-After
Tax (LIM-AT) — means that those
who have after-tax incomes 50 per
cent or below the national after-tax
median income, adjusted for family
size, are considered to be living in
low income.

» Market Basket Measure (MBM) —
reflects the cost of buying a
specified basket of goods and
services.

Cities are drivers of change

» Non-economic measures capture
the social and cultural aspects of
poverty such as access to cultural
resources and experiences of
discrimination.

Measuring poverty will also include
the use of data analytics to examine
how different actions interact with
each other to produce a defined
outcome.

The EndPovertyEdmonton
implementation plan will provide
a more fully developed evaluation
framework. It will clearly describe
and explain how success will be
measured, and how impact will
be assessed.

Cities are increasingly the place where work is getting done.
Enterprising cities like Edmonton are the agents of change.

Cities also generate the conditions
for families, individuals, organizations
and businesses to thrive by shaping
the environment that attracts people
and investment. A city like Edmonton
is truly a magnet; a regional hub
which offers a strategic platform

of programs and services to residents
and those who come here in search
of a better life.

Ending poverty requires all of us.
Together we can make a difference.
Can we count you in?

Imagine a city where...

“There is growing
awareness that cities fuel
the engines of national
economies.”

Sherri Torjman,
Cities at the Centre,
Caledon Institute May 2015

Children don't go to school
hungry, homelessness is a thing
of the past and everyone has a
chance to thrive and prosper!

48 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Page 59 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



HOW YOU
CAN HAVE
AN IMPACT

JOIN THE
EndPovertyEdmonton
MOVEMENT:

» Participate in our EndPovertyEdmonton
engagement sessions.

» Share your ideas on solutions
and actions to end poverty at
endpovertyedmonton.ca

» Spread the word and share this Strategy
with colleagues, friends and family.

» Talk with your local elected
representatives about ending poverty.

» Champion the cause of ending poverty
in your neighborhood.


www.endpovertyedmonton.ca

PRIORITIES

AT A GLANCE -
WHO TAKES
THE LEAD?

Our 28 priorities were further sorted according to purview
or responsibility:

City (C) — those actions that are clearly within the City’s mandate

City-Stakeholders (C-S) — those actions that involve the City
with community leaders and stakeholders

Movement (M) — those actions where leadership resides with different
stakeholders in the community and are carried out collectively.

TOWARD TRUE RECONCILIATION

C-S 1.Establish an Aboriginal culture and wellness centre
C-S 2. Initiate people-first and trauma-informed policy and practice
C-S 3.Implement a community witness program

C-S 4. Provide opportunities where Aboriginal people in poverty can
“show and grow” their talents

M 5. Make systemic changes to better reflect the needs, interests and
culture of Aboriginal people

JUSTICE FOR ALL

M 6. Eliminate racism

ot 7. Decriminalize poverty

(of 8. Make it easier to vote and participate in elections
(of

9. Make Edmonton a "human rights city”

MOVE PEOPLE OUT OF POVERTY

C-S 10. Advocate for livable incomes for Edmontonians
C 11. Make transit reliable, accessible and affordable for Edmontonians
C  12.Improve and expand transit services

C-S 13. Negotiate with other orders of government to increase funding for
affordable and supportive housing as well as rental subsidy programs

M  14.Develop a community-based learning group to look at housing and
zoning innovations

C-S 15. Improve skills training to help people gain sustainable employment
C-S 16. Improve literacy

C  17.Reduce barriers to getting information and accessing City programs
and services

C-S 18. Help people navigate systems in order to access resources and opportunities

C-S 19.Improve timely access to mental health and wellness services

50 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Page 61 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



INVEST IN OUR POVERTY-FREE FUTURE

C-S  20. Grow social enterprises to build sustainable livelihood and assets

C-S  21.Invest in food security-oriented enterprises aimed at increasing
food access and gainful employment

C-S 22. Partner with community organizations and other stakeholders
to create a community development corporation

M  23.Plan and implement a system of early learning and care

C-S 24.Reduce barriers for children and families to access services,
including out-of-school care and respite care

C-S 25. Advocate to the provincial government for the implementation
of culturally sensitive curricula and for standards that require
well-educated staff in all early learning and care centres

C-S 26. Advocate to the provincial government for sustainable, predictable
and adequate funding for school-based wrap-around services

M  27.Keep the individual at the centre in providing care, services
and supports

CHANGE THE CONVERSATION:
BUILD A MOVEMENT TO END POVERTY

M  28.Launch a collaborative broad-based community engagement
and education initiative to change people’s attitudes about poverty

End Poverty in a Generation

Page 62 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



THANK
YOU

Thank you for taking the time to read this report. It's important
"Sometimes it falls upon for everyone to understand the issues and see some clear
a generation to be great. strategies to end poverty in one generation.

You can be that great

generation.” We also appreciate the contributions of the many people living with poverty

who told us their stories and answered many questions. We learned a lot and
know that we have so much more to learn and do together as we tackle this

complex issue.

Nelson Mandela

We thank the over 200 people who took part in seven Working Groups
and two Round Tables with extraordinary commitment and passion.
Working Groups included Aboriginal people and newcomers, young

and old, people who work with those living with poverty, business leaders,
faith communities, doctors, academics, lawyers, educators, Government
of Alberta representatives and others.

Achieving this bold vision
will take a generation. Join
us in the movement to end
poverty in Edmonton!

52 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Page 63 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



EndPovertyEdmonton

TASK FORCE

Mayor Don Iveson (Co-Chair)
Rt. Rev. Jane Alexander (Co-Chair)
Councillor Ben Henderson
Councillor Amarjeet Sohi
Justin Archer

Jeffrey Bisanz

Fiona Cavanagh

Kate Chisholm

Yvonne Chiu

Joseph Doucet

Sarah Eadie

Dr. Louis Hugo Francescutti
Mark Holmgren

Sandra Huculak

Eugene Ip

Gord Johnston

Tanis Liebrich

Tiffany Linke-Boyko

Maria Mayan

Dr. Daniel McKennitt
Carman McNary

Janice Melnychuk

Anne Smith

Zahra Somani

Brenda St. Germain

John Thomson

Page 64 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package

ABORIGINAL
ROUND TABLE

Dr. Daniel McKennitt (Chair)

(Elder) Gilman Cardinal (former Co-Chair)
Brenda St. Germain (former Co-Chair)

Lisa Weber (former Co-Chair)
Rosey Dodman

Patti LaBoucane-Benson
Larissa Kreider

Ruby Littlechild

Elizabeth Potskin

Lise Robinson

Susan Sinclair

Rachelle Venne

Cheryl Whiskeyjack

Lisa Wolfe

Gord Stewart (COE Staff Liaison)

INFORMATION
AND RESEARCH
ROUND TABLE

Fiona Cavanagh (Chair)

Mark Anielski

Pieter de Vos

Peter Faid

John Kolkman

Katie MacDonald

Allan Undheim

Jolene Volpe

Deanna Williamson

Kris Andreychuk (COE Staff Liaison)

CITY OF EDMONTON
ADVISORS

Lyall Brenneis
Mike Chow

Bin Lau

Mark Torjusen
Walter Trocenko
Patricia Waismann

CONSULTANTS

Andrea Beca
Daniel Buckles
Jacques Chevalier
Diva Communications Inc.
Sue Heuman

Lift Interactive
Catrin Owen
Production World
Adam Rozenhart
Corinne Saad
Katie Soles

COMMUNICATIONS
ADVISORY GROUP

Justin Archer (Co-Chair)
Sandra Huculak (Co-Chair)
Alex Abboud

Kris Andreychuk

Lisa Baroldi

Dr. Louis Hugo Francescutti
Mark Holmgren

Mike Kluttig

Mack Male

Zahra Somani

Jolene Volpe

Lisa Weber

PROJECT TEAM

Ward Antoniuk
Shirley Birtch
Dallas Dyson
Kate Gunn
Joshua Manego
Lucenia Ortiz

End Poverty in a Generation

53



WORKING

GROUP

MEMBERS

COMMUNITY
WELL BEING

Maria Mayan (Co-Chair)
Robin Mazumder (Co-Chair)
Councillor Ben Henderson
Dr. Rob Agostinis

Sofiat Akinola

Michael Barton

Chelsea Boos

Amy Dixon

Jan Fox

Rajvir Gill

Aretha Greatrix

Susan Hopkins

Liz John-West

Pilar Martinez

Carolyn McLeary

Kylee Nixon

Brenda Schulz

Judy Sillito

Jane Slessor

Meghan Unterschultz
Meghana Valupadas
Maigan van der Giessen
Lynn Wade

Cheryl Whiskeyjack

Ben Weinlick

Tricia Boonstra (COE Staff Liaison)
Katie Walker (COE Staff Liaison)

EARLY CHILDHOOD
DEVELOPMENT

Gloria Chalmers (Co-Chair)
Jeff Bisanz (Co-Chair)
Councillor Bev Esslinger
Karen Bardy

Marilyn Bergstra
Barbara Dacks

Eeshani de Silva

Louise Forest

Lauri Gilchrist

Elaine Jones

Jaspreet Khangura

Gloria Nordin

Bev Parks

Tracy Patience

Mary Stewart

Karen Lee (COE Staff Liaison)

ECONOMIC SECURITY

Joseph Doucet (Co-Chair)
Lori Sigurdson (Co-Chair)
Councillor Michael Walters
John Acheson

Peter A. Carter

Kate Chisholm

Bruce Fafard

Roxanne Felix-Mah

Nick Ford

Patricia Gladue

Brooks Hanewich

Karina Hurtado
Bernadette lahtail

Usman Tahir Jutt

Tiffany Linke-Boyko

Poul Mark

Jane McDade

Susan Morrissey

Amaka Ofume

Angela Ostafichuk

Anne Smith

Alysha Visram

Mike Vivian

Ryan Young

Cheryl Gagnier (COE Staff Liaison)

EDUCATION

Janice Melnychuk (Co-Chair)
Larry Kowalczyk (Co-Chair)
Councilor Bev Esslinger
Sherry Adams

Marilyn Bergstra

Rosalie Cardinal

Don Carmichael

Joan Carr

Michelle Draper

54 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

llene Fleming
Linda Garvin
Jonna Grad
Patricia Grell
Eugene Ip
Eugenia Kowalczyk
Annette Malin
Susanna Makale
Eileen Marthiensen
Marlene Mulder
Cindy Olsen

Liz O'Neill

Nancy Petersen
Josephine Pon
Rod Rode

Edgar Schmidt
Dan Scratch
Zedingle Ghebremusse
(COE Staff Liaison)

HEALTH AND WELLNESS

Dr. Laura Calhoun (Co-Chair)
Ashintha de Silva (Co-Chair)
Marilyn Bergstra

Deb Cautley

lone Challborn

Dave Colburn

Jean Dalton

Kathryn Dong

Sarah Eadie

Dr. Louis Hugo Francescutti
Brandon A. Gladeau
Annette Lemire

David Miller

Kaley Pederson

Toby Rabinovitz

Dr. Chris Sikora

Jane Springett

Marliss Taylor

Troy Taylor

Avery Miller Vas

Jolene Volpe

Shelley Williams

Lianna Chondo (COE Staff Liaison)

Page 65 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



HOUSING AND
TRANSPORTATION

Mark Holmgren (Co-Chair)
Renée Vaugeois (Co-Chair)
Councillor Ben Henderson
Gordon Agopsowicz
Ward Antoniuk

Joelle Badman

Cristina Basualdo

Michael Brown

Karen Bruno

Suzanna Brytan

Stephen Carrattini

Mark Cherrington

Julian Daly

Dicky Dikamba

Jay Freeman

Martin Garber-Conrad
Karen Good

Nicholas Hermansen
Todd Herron

Karina Hurtado

Larisa Kreider

Bradley LaFortune

Esther Leung

Mack Male

Maureen Matthews

Susan McGee

Bob McKeon

Bruno Mercier
Henry Motta
Marlene Mulder
Barry Murphy

Laura Murphy

lan O'Donnell

Giri Puligandla
Cody Spencer
Brenda St. Germain
Deidre St. Luke
Shannon Stilet
Jason Storey

Stuart Tate

Walter Trocenko
Rachelle Venne
Patricia Waisman
Stephanie White
Merle White

Joelle Badman (COE Staff Liaison)

JUSTICE AND
DEMOCRATIC
PARTICIPATION

Sarah Eadie (Co-Chair)
Stephanie Laskoski (Co-Chair)
Neena Ahluwalia

Catherine Bell

Fiona Cavanagh

Mark Cherrington
Kate Chisholm
Dave Colburn
Pieter de Vos
Kanchana Fernando
Sheila Greckol
Cherene Griffiths
Tony Harder

John Henderson
Pam Kaur

Allan Lefever
Carman McNary
Natasha Nicholson
Patricia Paradis
Robert Philp
Suzanne Polkosnik
Giselle Rosario
Micki Ruth

Lori Shortreed

Toni Sinclair

David Veitch

Muriel Stanley Venne
Lisa Weber

Ben Weinlick

Lisa Wolfe

Kaylin Betteridge (COE Staff Liaison)

AND...
ALL EDMONTONIANS

John Humphrey Centre for Peace and Human Rights,
Youth Action Project on Poverty

End Poverty in a Generation 55

Page 66 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



REFERENCES

REPORTS

A Profile of Poverty in Edmonton, Edmonton Social Planning Council, January 2015.

Benchmark Survey on Edmontonians’ Awareness and Attitudes toward Poverty,
Leger Marketing, April 2015.

Boyle Street Community Services Focus Group, 2015.
Boys and Girls Big Brothers Big Sisters Focus Group, 2015.

Preliminary Strategic Framework for the Elimination of Poverty, 2013. Edmonton
Poverty Elimination Steering Committee.

Early Childhood Development Working Group Report, March 2015.
EndPovertyEdmonton Working Papers, March 2015.

Less Exclusion, More Engagement: Addressing Declining Voter Turn-out in
Alberta by Trevor Harrison and Harvey Krahn for Parkland Institute. April 2014.

Starting with Families First: Using Real Stories of Families Living in Poverty
to Optimize the Draft Recommendations of the Mayor’s Task Force for
the Elimination of Poverty in Edmonton, Laura Templeton and Sanchia Lo,
Community-University Partnership for the Study of Children, Youth, and Families,
May 2015.

Statistics Canada, 2011, 2014.

What We Heard: Engaging Edmontonians to Thrive and Prosper, January 2013.
Edmonton Poverty Elimination Steering Committee.

Youth Action Project, John Humphreys Centre, February 2015.

ENDNOTES
1 A Profile of Poverty in Edmonton, Edmonton Social Planning Council,
January 2015.

2 Statistics Canada (2014), Table F-18 Family Data — after tax low income,
Custom Tabulations re City of Edmonton, referenced in A Profile of Poverty
in Edmonton.

Statistics Canada (2014), Table 282-0112, Labour Force Survey Estimates.

4 Statistics Canada (2014), Table 204-0002, High income trends of tax filers
in Canada, provinces, territories and census metropolitan areas.

5 Starting with Families First, Templeton and Lo, 2015.

6 Vibrant Communities Calgary & Action to End Poverty in Alberta. (2012)
Poverty Costs: An Economic Case for a Preventative Poverty Reduction
Strategy in Alberta.

7 lbid.

8 Benchmark Survey on Edmontonians’ Awareness and Attitudes toward Poverty,
Leger, 2015.

9 Statistics Canada (2011), National Household Survey.
10 Statistics Canada (2011), National Household Survey.
11 Starting with Families First, Templeton and Lo, 2015.

56 EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy — September 2015

Page 67 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package






endpovertyedmonton.ca

Check our website regularly for information and events.

Follow us on Twitter
and we will keep you in the loop @EndPovertyyeg.

EndPovertyYEG
Share Facebook stories and ideas about what you
are doing in your community to end poverty.

Page 69 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


www.endpovertyedmonton.ca
https://twitter.com/EndPovertyYEG
https://twitter.com/EndPovertyYEG
https://www.facebook.com/EndPovertyYEG?fref=ts
https://www.facebook.com/EndPovertyYEG?fref=ts
https://www.facebook.com/EndPovertyYEG?fref=ts

B EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Recommendation Report

DATE: September 22, 2015

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Trustee Michael Janz

SUBJECT: Motion re Wellness Foundation for Alberta

REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook — Section 5.2.2 — Notices of Motion
Wellness Alberta Website

ISSUE
Notice of motion was served at the September 8, 2015 Board meeting.

BACKGROUND

Wellness Alberta brings together thousands of individuals including business, health

and recreational leaders and non-governmental organizations who support a

meaningful investment in the prevention of disease and injuries. Through a sustainable
investment in an Alberta Wellness Foundation, Albertans will benefit from improved health
outcomes and reduced demands on health care, which will greatly enrich the quality of life for
current and future generations.

A number of school boards have already endorsed the Wellness Foundation including the
Edmonton and Calgary Catholic school boards. The City Councils of Edmonton and Calgary
also provided unanimous support for the proposed Foundation. A list of the current Alberta
organizations that have formally endorsed the Wellness Alberta proposal is provided in
Attachment [.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Edmonton Public School Board, in line with our previous advocacy for
initiatives supporting health and wellness promotion and investing in disease and illness
prevention, give our conceptual endorsement to supporting a Wellness Foundation for
Alberta, as proposed by Wellness Alberta.

CONSIDERATIONS & ANALYSIS

The Wellness Foundation is important because it establishes a dedicated focus on prevention in
the health care system. Wellness Alberta has proposed that this initiative would be funded
through additional taxes on tobacco and alcohol.

What this could mean for district schools is more health promotion and investment in wellness
for students at the school level. Programs investing in school nutrition, health and fitness,
mental health and dozens of other important initiatives would be prioritized to support students.
These investments would contribute to saving Alberta taxpayers millions of dollars annually—
resources that could be re-invested in the public education system.

1

Page 70 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf
http://www.wellnessalberta.ca/

B EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Recommendation Report

The dollar figure recommended (1% of the Alberta Health Budget) by Wellness Alberta is
important because it recognizes the magnitude of the challenge that is investing in health
prevention. Because this is funded with new revenue, it would not be coming out of the
educational envelope. In the long term, investment in health promotion will save costs on
provincial health care expenditures, freeing up more resources for other purposes such as
investing in education.

The Wellness Foundation is proposed to be independent of the existing health care system but
accountable to the Provincial Government. The Wellness Foundation organizers propose
meeting with the Auditor General to establish reporting requirements. While it will take
direction from the Legislature, it is important that it remains stand-alone to ensure that wellness
and health prevention are sustainable over time, prioritized and isolated from the continued
needs of the acute-care system. Transformation takes time and dedicated effort and cannot be
done if prevention efforts are being short-changed by other important health priorities. The
Wellness Foundation would be accountable to the Alberta Legislature, similar to other agencies.

NEXT STEPS
Pending approval of the recommendation, a letter of endorsement from the Edmonton Public
School Board of the Wellness Foundation as proposed by Wellness Alberta will be sent.

ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT I - Current List of Organizational Endorsements

ATTACHMENT II -  Endorsement Form for Wellness Foundation

ATTACHMENT III - Wellness Alberta Overview: Wellness Foundation Policy
Recommendations

ATTACHMENT IV - August 24, 2015 Blog Post by Michael Janz: Alberta Needs a
Wellness Foundation

MJ:mmf

2

Page 71 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


http://www.wellnessalberta.ca/current-endorsements.html
http://www.wellnessalberta.ca/uploads/1/8/7/9/18790320/_brochure_2013_v1.pdf
http://www.wellnessalberta.ca/uploads/1/8/7/9/18790320/wellness_alberta_one_page_overview.pdf
http://www.wellnessalberta.ca/uploads/1/8/7/9/18790320/wellness_alberta_one_page_overview.pdf
http://www.michaeljanz.ca/2015/08/alberta-needs-a-wellness-foundation/

Wellnhess

ATTACHMENT I

Current Organizational Endorsements

Alberta

The following Alberta organizations have formally endorsed the Wellness Alberta proposal to
secure a well-financed, sustainable Wellness Foundation that will operate independently of the

health care system.

This list is updated regularly as the list of supporters is growing rapidly and currently represents

over 3.5 million Albertans!

Action on Smoking & Health

Alberta Blue Cross

Alberta Coalition for Healthy School
Communities (ACHSC)

Alberta Centre for Active Living

Alberta Centre for Injury Control and Research

Alberta College and Association of
Chiropractors

Alberta College of Medical Diagnostic and
Therapeutic Technologists

Alberta College of Family Physicians

Alberta Continuing Care Association

Alberta Food Matters (AFM)

Alberta Medical Association

Alberta Motor Association (AMA)

Alberta Native Friendship Centres Association

Alberta Pharmacists' Association (APA)

Alberta Policy Coalition for Chronic Disease
Prevention (APCCP)

Alberta Public Health Association

Alberta Recreation and Parks Association

Alberta Schools Athletic Association

Alberta Teachers' Association

Arthur J.E. Child Foundation

Beaver County

Boys and Girls Clubs - Western Region

Calgary Catholic School District

Calgary Rural Primary Care Network

Campaign for a Smoke-Free Alberta (CSFA)

Canadian Cancer Society, AB/NWT Division

Canadian Diabetes Association AB/NWT

Canadian Institute of Natural and Integrative
Medicine

Canadian Paraplegic Association - AB

Cardel Place

Catholic Central High School

Chrysalis: An Alberta Society for Citizens with
Disabilities

City of St. Albert

City of Edmonton

City of Calgary

City of Leduc

City of Red Deer

City of Medicine Hat

Page 72 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package

Conference Board of Canada

County of Lethbridge

County of Northern Lights

Edmonton Catholic Schools

Edmonton North Primary Care Network

Ever Active Schools

Foundation for the Future Charter Academy

Grant MacEwan University-Aboriginal
Education Centre

Growing Food Security in Alberta (GSFA)

Health Sciences Association of Alberta (HSAA)

Heart and Stroke Foundation

High Prairie School Division (#48)

Lung Association of Alberta & NWT

Leduc-Beaumont-Devon Primary Care
Network

Max Bell Foundation

Medicine Hat Family YMCA

Mount Royal University

Mount Royal University - Health Services &
Optimal Therapies Clinic

Mount Royal University - Recreation

MS Society of Canada - AB & NWT Division

Municipal District of Taber

Native Counselling Services of Alberta

Norlien Foundation

Northern Alberta Institute of Technology (NAIT)
-Athletics and Recreation

'NSTEP (Nutrition, Students, Teachers
Exercising with Parents)

Onoway High School

Parkland County

Policy, Location and Access in Community
Environments (PLACE) Research Lab

Promoting Optimal Weights through Ecological
Research (POWER) Lab

Red Deer College - Department of Kinesiology
& Sport Studies

Royal Life Saving Society Canada - AB/NWT
Branch

Safe Healthy Active People Everywhere
(SHAPE)

Saffron Centre Ltd

Sport Medicine Council of Alberta


http://www.wellnessalberta.ca/current-endorsements.html

Society of Alberta Occupational Therapists

St. John Ambulance - Alberta Council

Strathcona County

The Support Network

Town of Beaumont

Town of Black Diamond

Town of Bruderheim

Town of Coalhurst

Town of Coronation

Town of Okotoks

Town of Picture Butte

Town of Pincher Creek

Town of Smoky Lake

Town of Two Hills

Town of Wembley

Trico Charitable Foundation

University of Alberta - Centre for Health
Promotion Studies

Page 73 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package

University of Alberta - Faculty of Physical
Education & Recreation

University of Alberta - School of Public Health

University of Alberta - Students' Union

University of Calgary - Faculty of Kinesiology

Village of Barnwell

Village of Breton

Village of Chipman

Village of Clyde

Village of Consort

Village of Hussar

Village of Longview

Werklund Foundation

Wolf Creek Public Schools

YMCA Calgary

YMCA Lethbridge

YMCA Northern Region

YMCA Wood Buffalo



hronic disease is the leading cause of death

and disability in Alberta and has a major
impact on the physical, mental and economic
health of all residents. The good news is that over
40% of these diseases can be prevented by taking
action to reduce risk factors including tobacco and
alcohol use, poor nutrition and physical inactivity.

Promoting positive mental health also helps
prevent chronic disease. Taking action to prevent

We"ness Alberta brings together

thousands of individuals including business, health
and recreational leaders and non-governmental
organizations who support a meaningful investment
in the prevention of disease and injuries. Through

a sustainable investment in an Alberta Wellness
Foundation, Albertans will benefit from improved
health outcomes and reduced demands on health
care, which will greatly enrich the quality of life for
current and future generations.

adverse childhood experiences reduces risk for
mental illness and chronic diseases later in life.

Adults living with mental illness have a higher
risk of developing chronic health conditions, and
people suffering from chronic disease are twice
as likely to experience depression and anxiety
compared to others. Similarly, supporting action
to reduce or eliminate risks for injury and chronic
disability will reduce risk for chronic diseases and
improve quality of life.

Unfortunately, the Alberta Government is spending
more than ever before on acute health care, with
the majority spent on treating and managing these
diseases and conditions.

-

Statement of Support

We, the undersigned, support the efforts of Wellness
Alberta and believe the Alberta Government should

establish a Wellness Foundation in Alberta, which is:

v Well-Financed (initial investment of $50 million
annually, increasing over 3 to 5 years to an amount
equivalent to at least 1 percent of the health care
budget or $170 million annually).

v’ Sustained and protected by legislation; and,

v Functions independently of the acute health care
system to maintain financial autonomy, accountability
and transparency.

Organization

Name/Title of authorized representative

Email and Phone

U We want to receive campaign updates

*Signature

Date

* Signing this document reflects your endorsement and will
be shared on www.wellnessalberta.ca and with public and
government stakeholders.

Please sign and return this statement by fax or
email to:

Wellness
Alberta

Fax: 780.492.0364
Email: info@wellnessalberta.ca

m,

ATTACHMENT II

It’s about

Take action to prevent chronic disease...
Support a Wellness Foundation for Alberta.

Wellnhess
Alberta

2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



P revention and health promotion are
chronically underfunded in Alberta; currently
equivalent to approximately 3 percent of the total
budget spent on health.

invested in
prevention &

health promotion
can be expected to
result in

E at least

Savings

in future acute
care costs

Alberta needs to make new, long-term investments
in disease prevention and wellness promotion to
improve health outcomes, protect our economic
productivity and ensure a high quality of life for all
Albertans, now and in the future.

A Wellness Foundation is an innovative and effective
model that will ensure new investments:

are protected from the demands of acute care
funding needs; and,

are committed in the long-term to evidence-based
prevention and health promotion strategies.

For more information about how a Wellness Foundation can promote and protect the wellness of children, adults, families
and communities in Alberta, please see our website: www.wellnessalberta.ca.

Page 75 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



ATTACHMENT III

B 4500 Stati South, Ed ton, AB T6E 6K2
Wellness ox o —_—

Ph. 780.485.3013 e info@wellnessalberta.ca

Alberta APRIL2013

Overview: Wellness Foundation Policy Recommendations

Wellness Alberta is very concerned about the chronic disease epidemic in Alberta. Chronic disease is the leading cause of death and

disability in Alberta and it has a major impact on the physical, mental and economic health of all residents. The good news is that

over 40% of these diseases can be prevented by taking action to reduce risk factors including tobacco and alcohol use, poor
nutrition and physical inactivity.

Protecting mental health by preventing adverse childhood experiences

Wellness Alberta Recommends: and reducing risk for injury and disability is also crucial to preventing
chronic disease. Unfortunately, the Alberta Government is spending more
e Establish a Wellness Foundation to than ever before on acute health care, with the majority (over 90%) spent
transform the health and quality of on treating and managing preventable disease and disability.

life of all Albertans. . Wellness Alberta believes Alberta needs to make new, long-term and
The Wellness Foundation must be sustainable investments in preventing disease and promoting health to
well-financed, sustainable and reduce the burden on our health care system and improve our quality of

operate independent of the health life. Alberta needs a Wellness Foundation.
care system.
The Wellness Foundation must focus

To maximize the impact on the physical, mental and economic health of
Albertans, the Wellness Foundation must be well-financed, sustainable
on primary prevention to address and independent of the health care system. The Foundation will focus on
major modifiable risk factors for primary prevention initiatives to address six major modifiable risk factors
chronic disease. including physical inactivity, unhealthy eating, tobacco use, alcohol misuse
adverse childhood experiences and injury.

e  We recommend that the Foundation be announced in August 2013 and initiate operation in April 2014.

e  We propose the Foundation be initially financed through an annual grant of $50M, increasing to at least $170M annually
(representing an amount equivalent to at least 1% of the Alberta Health budget) over a 3-5 year period.

e The Foundation funding must be new investments that are in addition to Government’s current overall investment in
prevention and health promotion and must not be reallocated out of existing health budgets.

e New investments can be derived from the Alberta Government’s general revenue fund or by the creation of a “Wellness Levy”
funded by modest mark-ups on alcohol and tobacco products.

e Stable, long-term funding dedicated to prevention and health promotion is a good value for money: a one dollar investment can
be expected to result in a minimum $4-5 cost savings in future acute health care expenditures. However, some large scale
interventions have been shown to produce a return-of-investment of up to 50:1.

e The Foundation will ensure new investments are directed to evidence-based strategies and sustained over the long-term to
improve the health of Albertans and reduce the burden of chronic disease and disability on our health care system.

e The Foundation must function independently of the acute health care system to maintain financial autonomy, accountability
and transparency.

e The Foundation should be created by an Act of the Legislative Assembly and report directly to the Assembly each year.

e The Foundation should be governed by an independent board comprised of key stakeholders that are selected by an all-party
committee of the Legislative Assembly.

For more information about what a Wellness Foundation could do to promote and protect the wellness of children, adults, families
and communities in Alberta, please see our website www.wellnessalberta.ca.

Page 76 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


http://www.wellnessalberta.ca/

ATTACHMENT IV

Alberta Needs A Wellness Foundation

Excerpt from August 24, 2015 Michael Janz Blog Post
I believe our province needs to shift our healthcare system towards a greater focus on disease

prevention.

I also believe that prevention efforts must focus on our most formative years: the early vears
and our K-12 education system. Healthy children grow up to be healthy Albertans. There is
only one tax dollar, and dollars spent treating preventable diseases, are dollars not available
to invest in our school system. If we can shift our system to be more proactive and
preventative, we will see significant cost savings that could be invested in other areas, such as
K-12 education.

At our September 8th Public Board Meeting I will be giving notice of motion that our board
join the chorus of other advocate organizations, municipalities, and school boards calling for
the establishment of a Wellness Foundation as outlined by Wellness Alberta.

I believe that a Wellness Foundation would be of significant interest to our School board
because of the potential future investments in health promotion in our school system.
Lifelong habits are formed during the school years, and I hope that as a school district can be
a supportive partner in turning the (healthy) learners of today into the (healthy) leaders of
tomorrow.

As a school district, we already are partners in reducing tobacco use. We have eliminated the
sale of junk food from our schools. We are working on numerous programs that increase
physical activity. We are partners in drug and alcohol programs. We are continuing to
increase our focus on the early years and supporting those students at the greatest risk or
who are entering our school system with the greatest needs. The Wellness Alberta proposed
Wellness Foundation is aligned with our mission, vision, and priorities.

Click here to see the full blog post.

Page 77 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


http://www.michaeljanz.ca/2015/08/alberta-needs-a-wellness-foundation/
http://www.michaeljanz.ca/2015/08/alberta-needs-a-wellness-foundation/
https://www.epsb.ca/programs/earlyyears/
http://www.michaeljanz.ca/2015/08/alberta-needs-a-wellness-foundation/

&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

DATE: September 22, 2015
TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Trustee Sherry Adams, Board and Superintendent Evaluation Committee

Trustee Ken Gibson, Board and Superintendent Evaluation Committee, Chair

SUBJECT: 2014-2015 Board Self-Evaluation
RESOURCE
STAFF: Dr. Sandra Stoddard

REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook - Section 6.1.3 (page 54) — Board and Superintendent of
Schools Evaluation Committee

ISSUE
The Board of Trustees annually provides a summary report of the Board’s Self-Evaluation survey
results from the previous school year to the public.

BACKGROUND

Each year, the Board conducts a self-evaluation to assess its performance with respect to the Board's
roles and responsibilities. The purpose of a Board evaluation is to review the Board’s performance
with the goal of determining:

(a) what is being done well, and
(b) what aspects of Board activity require improvement and a corporate commitment to Board
development.

In the past, Trustees have been asked to complete an online survey in which they evaluate eleven key
performance areas by rating a number of individual indicators of success underneath each section.
Feedback from the last administration of the Board Self-Evaluation online survey revealed that this
process was cumbersome. In response, the Board and Superintendent Evaluation Committee
simplified the evaluation instrument, requiring Trustees to only provide an overall rating for each of
the eleven key performance areas (with the indicators of success remaining in the tool to support
trustees in determining the overall rating). Consistent with the previous Board evaluation,

below each key area, Board members have an opportunity to provide further information by
describing one or more examples that illustrate or support their rating.

From April 7 to April 14, 2015, Trustees completed an online 2014-2015 Board Self-Evaluation
survey — a copy of the survey instrument is provided in Attachment I. Trustees were asked to rate
the Board’s overall effectiveness on each key area using a four-point rating scale.

4 - Fully Achieved — The Board is a model of excellence

3 - Mostly Achieved — The Board is very effective and demonstrates an area of strength

2 - Partially Achieved — The Board’s performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for growth

1 - Beginning to Achieve — The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area
requiring immediate attention

1

Page 78 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf
https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf

&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

CURRENT SITUATION
A high-level summary of the eleven areas, from highest to lowest rating, is provided below and is
being reported to the public as part of the Board’s annual accountability practices.

Mission Vision, Values and Priorities: This area received a 100 per cent positive rating (71.43%
fully achieved, and 28.57% mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that the Board is proud
of the work they have accomplished in establishing direction for the District. The Board feels that,
in two years, they have developed and internalized the Vision, Mission Values and Priorities. They
report there is strong evidence these are in the forefront of all decision-making made by the Board
and Administration.

Board and Superintendent Relationships: This area received a 100 per cent positive rating (57.14%
fully achieved, and 42.86% mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that the Board and
Superintendent’s relationship is strong and is grounded in ongoing, open, honest and transparent
communication. The Board stated that the Superintendent is very approachable and full, complete
and unbiased information is shared between the Board and the Superintendent; resulting in an
organizational culture of respect and trust. The process used for the Superintendent of Schools’
evaluation is strong - performance is assessed regularly and he is held accountable for the
achievement of the strategic plan.

Decision-Making: This area received a 100 per cent positive rating (57.14% fully achieved, and
42.86% mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that, on rare occasions, decisions can be
so time-sensitive that it is difficult to know if the situation is covered but, for the most part, the
Board feels they receive adequate and timely information to make effective and evidence-based
decisions that serve the needs of students.

Committee and Representative Work: This area received al00 per cent positive rating (42.86% fully
achieved, and 57.14% mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that streamlining Board
Committees and focusing on priorities has enabled them to be more effective and strategic in
meeting the needs of the District. It was also felt that committee structures supported Trustees in
engaging in committee work that directly aligned to their particular areas of interests. Individual
Trustee comments included a desire for a resolution on ASBA-related matters so that the Board can
focus on District issues.

Results Oriented: This area received a 100 per cent positive rating (14.29% fully achieved, and
85.71% mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that the Board is results oriented and is
developing processes to use data to guide decision-making. The development of a dashboard and
ongoing results review processes are examples of the Board’s commitment to evidence-based
practices. The Board reported that the Annual Education Results Report is focused on student
achievement data and district performance measures that provide clear evidence of progress towards
achieving our priorities and goals.

Budget: This area received an 85.70 per cent positive rating (28.57% fully achieved, and 57.14%
mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that the Board has good processes in place for
public accountability relative to the budget. While the Board continues to advocate for adequate,
predictable and sustainable funding, this is an area that will require focused attention. The Board
believes that having the Audit Committee comprised of the Committee of the Whole demonstrates
its commitment to its fiduciary responsibilities. An area for improvement was noted with respect to
ensuring that budgetary decisions remain at the big-picture level and not on minor items.

2

Page 79 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

Climate and Culture: This area received an 85.70 per cent positive rating (28.57% fully achieved,
and 57.14% mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that achievements are celebrated
throughout the District, collaborative work is occurring in catchments and, as a result, innovative and
creative work is happening. The Board has created a culture of respect for each other and engages in
continuous learning. The Board recognizes the importance district culture plays in the attraction,
recruitment and retention of staff required to meet the needs of its diverse student population.

School Board Relationships and Conduct: This area received an 85.70 per cent positive rating
(28.57% fully achieved, and 57.14% mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that

the Board is cohesive and respectful of one another. They value the strengths each Trustee brings to
the Board. Good working relationships have been developed and they have created a safe
environment to question the status quo, voice opinions and disagree without being disagreeable.
Suggested improvements were noted in ensuring that Board meetings are more efficient and that
they remain within reasonable time frames. There was a comment that all Board members should be
attending all Board-hosted events.

Policy Governance: This area received an 85.70 per cent positive rating (14.29 fully achieved, and
71.43% mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that the Board feels that the policy
development process is strong. Suggested improvements were to review the overall policy
development plan to ensure it is on track, explore strategies to invoke more input from stakeholders,
and to develop strategies to monitor implementation of the policies.

Alignment of Resources: This area received an 85.70 per cent positive rating (14.28% fully
achieved, and 71.43% mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that the establishment of the
Equity Fund has been a tremendous equalizer and that the District priorities are a focus for resource
allocation. Regardless of the size of the school, provision is made for students to have access to the
supports that are needed. Opportunities for improvement exist in being more creative in utilizing
resources more effectively and efficiently (i.e., partnerships with other boards, private enterprise,
etc.).

Community Relations: This area received a 71.43 per cent positive rating (28.57% fully achieved,
and 42.86 % mostly achieved). Qualitative comments indicate that the Board feels its
communication with stakeholders and the community is a two-way process and they cited the
consultation process for the Growth Accommodation Plan and the Greater Lawton and Greater
Highlands Replacement school concept as positive examples. The Board reported that policies are in
place for parents to share responsibility in their child’s education and for stakeholder engagement.
There was an indication that the Board would benefit from hosting meetings with other agency
boards, determining strategies for improving parent engagement and reaching out to parents from
different cultures more effectively.

KEY POINTS

e This is the second year in the four-year term for the Board of Trustees. An annual evaluation
report being delivered at this time of year will support the transition to a third year of office. The
results of the evaluation will also be useful to the Board in the development of its strategic work
plan.

e The Board celebrates the strong working relationship that has been forged between the Board,
the Superintendent and Administration. Ongoing, open, honest and transparent communication
mechanisms are in place, which supports a culture of trust and alignment of actions.

3

Page 80 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

e The development of a dashboard tied to District Priorities and using this data to support the
Board in making evidence-based decisions will continue to support the achievement of the
District Mission, Vision and Priorities.

e Trustees remain committed to engaging students, staff, parents and the community by providing
ongoing opportunities for input and feedback into decision-making.

e Moving forward, there is great opportunity to work collaboratively with other metro boards, to
find efficiencies and creative solutions to the collective challenges faced.

ATTACHMENT
ATTACHMENT I - 2014-2015 Board Self-Evaluation Instrument

SS:mmf

4

Page 81 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



ATTACHMENT I

Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

About the Board Evaluation Questionnaire

The questionnaire is organized into eleven sections around the Board’s Role and Responsibility statement. The Board
has a number of reference/source documents which address board governance and how the Board will carry out its role
and responsibilities:

e Province of Alberta School Act

e Board Role and Responsibility Statement
e Principles of Board Operation

e Board Committees

e ASBA - Role of the School Trustee

e Trustee Code of Ethics

District Vision, Mission, Values, and Priorities

Vision
Transforming the learners of today into the leaders of tomorrow.

Mission
We inspire student success through high quality learning opportunities, supported by meaningfully engaged students,
parents, staff and community.

Values
Supporting the Vision, Mission and Priorities are the District’s core values of accountability, collaboration, equity and
integrity.

District Priorities 2014-2018

1. Foster growth and success for every student by supporting their journey from early learning through high school
completion and beyond.

Provide welcoming, high quality learning and working environments.

3. Enhance public education through communication, engagement and partnerships.

N

Page 82 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

Completing the Board Evaluation Questionnaire

For each section of the online questionnaire, there is a listing of indicators that will support Trustees in determining an
overall rating for each section.

For each question, Trustees are asked to provide a rating on a four-point scale. Trustees are encouraged to describe one
or more examples that illustrate or support their rating. This qualitative data will be helpful during the discussion of the
results of the evaluation and will be used to inform action planning.

*hkkkkkkkhkkhkhkhkkhkhhkhkhkhkhhhhkhkhhhhhhkhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhhkhhhhhhkhhhhhkhhhhhhkhhhhhhkdx

Trustees completed the evaluation individually using the following rating scale:

4 - Fully Achieved -
(The Board is a model of excellence)

3 - Mostly Achieved -
(The Board is very effective and demonstrates an area of strength)

2 - Partially Achieved -
(The Board's performance is satisfactory/ demonstrates an area for potential growth)

1 - Beginning to Achieve -
(The Board's performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention)

Each board member is required to complete the on-line evaluation by April 14th, so that the results can be electronically
compiled and shared at the Trustee Retreat on April 16-17th 2015.

Page 83 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

MISSION, VISION, VALUES AND PRIORITIES

Indicators:

Stakeholder representatives (school board, executive team, central staff, school staff, employee organizations,
students, parents and the community) helped to create the vision, mission, values, and priorities.

We discussed the core beliefs and values of our school district and community, and ensured these values were
reflected in our vision, mission, values, and priorities.

We have a written vision, mission, values, and priorities that guide decision making and commits the success of
all students as the top priority.

Our vision, mission, values, and priorities are clearly articulated and known to all stakeholders.

The vision, mission, values, and priority statements are prominently displayed, regularly communicated and
referred to often when making decisions.

We frequently revisit and reaffirm our vision to ensure our constancy of purpose.

Our vision, mission, values, and priorities form the basis for our strategic planning and policy decisions.

We base our resource and budget decisions on our vision, mission, values, and priorities.

Please provide your rating on the section Vision, Mission, Values, and Priorities, based on
the indicators above.

- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)
- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)
- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to

comment on specific indicators under the section Mission, Vision, Values, and Priorities.

A

Page 84 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

RESULTS ORIENTED

Indicators:

Please provide your rating on the section Results Oriented, based on the indicators above.
- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)

- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)

- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Our district publishes an annual report of progress (Annual Education Results Report).

Our annual report includes data on student achievement and district performance related to district priorities and
goals.

The format of our report is consistent from year to year and includes data from prior years.

The report is shared with stakeholders and used to develop targets around areas for growth.

We produce a summary of the Annual Education Results Report that provides parents and community members
with easy to understand information about the district’s progress.

Our Board compares our data with data from other districts that are similar to ours

We disaggregate our data to measure the success of all students (Special Needs; ELL, FNMI).

We use our student achievement data to make decisions and establish district priorities.

We communicate to the public how our decisions are linked to student achievement data.

We tie our evaluation of ourselves, as a Board, to our results.

We tie the evaluation of the Superintendent to the results of our students.

Annual reports and Results Reviews provide clear evidence of progress towards achieving our priorities and goals.
Consistency is needed.

Annual reports and Results Reviews are used to guide reflection, questions and dialogue that enhance decision
making and lead to the identification of areas requiring additional focus.

Page 85 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of Results Oriented.

Page 86 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

ALIGNMENT OF RESOURCES

Indicators:

Please provide your rating on the section Alignment of Resources, based on the indicators
above.

- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)
- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)
- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of Alignment of Resources.

We have established a specific and limited set of priorities for improving student learning that gives everyone in the
District clear focus.

We ensure resource equity by providing additional supports to students and schools with higher needs.

We use the budget as a vehicle to accomplish our vision, mission, values, and priorities.

Programs and initiatives are added, continued, changed or deleted based on analysis of results, district priorities
and available resources.

We consider the strengths, expertise and capacity of district staff when making resource decisions.

Plans and actions in the area of infrastructure, (e.g. Three Year Capital Plan, Infrastructure Strategy, Ten Year
Facilities Plan) clearly support the vision, mission, values, and priorities.

Page 87 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

BUDGET

Indicators:

The budget planning and allocation process is clear and communicated to the District and the public.

The budget planning process involves community input.

We demonstrate our fiduciary responsibility by maintaining an Audit Committee that assists us in mitigating
present and future risks to the District.

Financial statements are thoroughly reviewed and we seek legal and ethical compliance assurances from the
Superintendent.

We report regularly to the public on the District’s financial position and future.

We advocate for adequate, predictable and sustainable funding.

Please provide your rating on the section Budget, based on the indicators above.
- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)

- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)

- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of Budget.

Page 88 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

CLIMATE AND CULTURE

Indicators:

Please provide your rating on the section Climate and Culture, based on the indicators
above.

- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)
- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)
- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

We model the core values and beliefs of our shared vision and mission.

We have created a climate that values and celebrates staff and students for high achievement and high levels of
improvement.

We are building a diverse workforce that reflects our student population.

We promote continuous learning in which change, innovation and creativity is embraced as a value.

We foster a culture that supports the belief that all children can learn at high levels and have policies to reflect this
philosophy.

We ensure periodic assessment of school climate throughout the District through attendance data, discipline
data, staff turnover data, surveys of students, staff, and parents, and student enrolment trends.

We ensure a safe, caring and respectful working and learning environment for staff and students.

We value distributed leadership that results in decisions being made at the level closest to implementation.

We demonstrate our value of building leadership capacity.

We demonstrate our commitment to continuous improvement by engaging in ongoing professional development
related to governance.

We value transparency.

Page 89 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of Climate and Culture.

Page 90 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

SCHOOL BOARD AND SUPERINTENDENT RELATIONSHIPS

Indicators:

We seek to maintain a professional relationship with the Superintendent and understand, and respect the
executive function of the role.

Ongoing, open, honest, transparent communication mechanisms are in place, fostering trusting relationships
between the Board, Superintendent and administration.

Full, complete and unbiased information is shared between the Board and the Superintendent to maintain an
organizational culture of respect and trust.

We receive advice from the Superintendent in a respectful manner.

We are kept informed in a timely fashion on district matters.

In searching for the best solutions, we demonstrate respect for healthy debate and the value of democratic
decision-making.

Our Board and the Superintendent share a common understanding of the District culture.

The Superintendent’s performance is regularly assessed and communicated in consideration of agreed-upon
indicators. The evaluation process for the Superintendent is fair and valid.

We hold the Superintendent accountable for implementation of the policies (including the vision, mission, values,
and priorities) and achievement of the strategic plan.

Please provide your rating on the section School Board and Superintendent Relationships,
based on the indicators above.

- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)
- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)
- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Page 91 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of School Board and Superintendent
Relationships.

Page 92 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

SCHOOL BOARD RELATIONSHIPS AND CONDUCT

Indicators:

e We cooperate with each other to get the work done.

e We respect the confidentiality of private conversations.

e We are respectful of everyone’s time: our own, staff’'s, and community members’. This includes being on time and
prepared for meetings.

e We model respect and courtesy for all through our choice of words, body language, and actions.

e We endeavor to keep each other well informed as to our actions and comments.

o We model ideals of democracy by engaging fully in debate, disagreeing respectfully, and being open to the ideas
and opinions of others.

e We refrain from expressing how we will vote in the media, websites, blogs, correspondence, or in private

conversations with community members but freely discuss various considerations that will inform the upcoming
discussion.

e When asked about a board decision we fairly reflect the discussion, demonstrate support for the democratic
process, and focus on next steps.

e When asked about a board decision we fairly reflect the discussion, demonstrate support for the democratic
process, and focus on next steps.

e The system for addressing divergence from our protocols is clear and followed.

e We share the responsibility of representing the Board at EPSB and partner events.

Please provide your rating on the section School Board Relationships and Conduct, based
on the indicators above.

O 4 - Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)
O 3 - Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)
O 2 - Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

O 1 - Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Page 93 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of School Board Relationships and
Conduct.

Page 94 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

Indicators:

Our communication with stakeholders and the community is a two way process.

We have policies and practices in place to encourage parents to be active partners in their children’s education.
We encourage parents and members of the community to share responsibility for the success of schools and
students.

Our communication with the media is effective.

We use social media responsibly.

We provide opportunities for stakeholder and community input into key actions of the Board.

Our vision and priorities reflect community needs and interests.

We engage communities before important decisions are made and invite them to keep us informed about
emerging issues and opportunities.

We work to maintain and develop Partnerships with organizations, other districts and government to serve the
needs and achievement of students and the District.

We regularly report on student achievement and accomplishment of District priorities to the public.

We communicate regularly with other elected officials to ensure public education is a top priority for investment
and support.

We actively seek out student voice and perspective.

Please provide your rating on the section Community Relations, based on the indicators
above.

- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)
- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)
- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Page 95 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of Community Relations.

Page 96 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

POLICY GOVERNANCE

Indicators:

Please provide your rating on the section Policy Governance, based on the indicators
above.

- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)
- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)
- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of Policy Governance.

Our policy-making process is well-defined and understood.

Opportunities are provided for stakeholders and the public to give input to policy decisions and planning.

The policy manual is updated regularly.

The policies are clearly communicated to stakeholders.

Board policies are accessible.

The policy process provides timely guidance for the operation of the school district.

We use policy as our primary governance tool to articulate our goals, define principles that guide the actions of the
administration and assess the effectiveness of decisions.

We monitor the implementation of our policies.

Page 97 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

COMMITTEE AND REPRESENTATIVE WORK

Indicators:

We approve the Terms of Reference and scope of work for all Board committees and Board representatives to
external organizations.

The roles and responsibilities of each committee, and each representative, clearly assist us in achieving our roles
and responsibilities.

Each committee and representative provides written reports and recommendations to assist us in our work.

Committees and representatives do background reading and consult with staff, when required, before they make
recommendations to the Board.

We share the responsibility of committee work and board representation on external committees and boards.
Each committee uses staff support effectively to achieve its goals.

Please provide your rating on the section Committee and Representative Work, based on
the indicators above.

- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)
- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)
- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of Committee and Representative Work.

PN

Page 98 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

DECISION MAKING

Indicators:

We wait to make decisions until complete information is available.

Decisions are made based on analysis of risks/benefits/implications.

Members of the public have opportunities to express their opinions before decisions are made.
Each Trustee has an opportunity to ask questions and to speak before the Board votes on issues.
We stay focused on issues and not personalities.

We explore consequences of potential decisions and engage in “If, then” discussions.

We make decisions based on what is best for students.

We make decisions on the basis of facts and evidence, not hearsay.

All decisions are made or ratified in public.

We are not involved in decision making if there is a conflict of interest.

We take responsibility for decisions once they are made.

Please provide your rating on the section Decision Making, based on the indicators above.
- Fully Achieved (The Board is a model of excellence.)

- Mostly Achieved (The Board is very effective/demonstrates and area of strength.)

- Partially Achieved (The Board's performance is satisfactory/demonstrates an area for potential growth.)

- Beginning to Achieve (The Board’s performance is not satisfactory/demonstrates an area requiring immediate attention.)

Use the space below to describe one or more examples that illustrate your response or to
comment on specific indicators under the section of Decision Making.

Page 99 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package




Board Self-Evaluation 2014-2015

What was the proudest moment for the Board this year?

Page 19

Page 100 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

DATE: September 22, 2015
TO: Board of Trustees
FROM: Trustee Sherry Adams, Board and Superintendent Evaluation Committee

Trustee Ken Gibson, Board and Superintendent Evaluation Committee, Chair

SUBJECT: 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’ Evaluation
RESOURCE
STAFF: Dr. Sandra Stoddard

REFERENCE: January 20, 2015 — Board Report — Report #6 of the Caucus Committee

Meeting

Board Policy FGB.BP — Evaluation of Superintendent of Schools
Trustees’ Handbook — Section 6.1.3 (pages 54 to 56) — Board and
Superintendent of Schools Evaluation Committee

ISSUE
The Board of Trustees annually provides a summary report of its evaluation of the
Superintendent of Schools’ performance for the previous school year to the public.

BACKGROUND

The Board and Superintendent of Schools Evaluation (BSEC) Committee met on October 23,
2014 to discuss the 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’ evaluation process. The Committee
recommended that the same process from 2013-2014 be utilized for the 2014-2015 evaluation
and that Conroy Ross be contracted to assist the Committee in submitting a final report. Due to
the fact that a determination of reappointment of Darrel Robertson, for the position of
Superintendent of Schools would need to be made, the Board felt contracting an external
company to conduct the evaluation was a transparent and non-biased approach.

On January 6, 2015, Mr. Gord Syme of Conroy Ross met with the BSEC Committee to confirm
details relative to the evaluation tool and process. He also met with the Superintendent of
Schools to review the process, discuss the 360 degree feedback tool and confirm the list of key
stakeholders who would participate in the evaluation process. On January 20, 2015, the Board
approved the following recommendations:

1. That the contracting of Conroy Ross to assist the Board and Superintendent Evaluation
Commiittee in conducting the 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’ Evaluation be
approved.

2. That the process and timeline as outlined in the consulting request for proposal from
Conroy Ross with respect to the 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’ Evaluation be
approved.

3. That the costs for conducting the 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’ Evaluation be taken
from the Board Initiative Fund.

Page 101 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2014-15/january20/02-Report6oftheCaucusCommittee-FromtheMeetingHeldJanuary6,2015.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2014-15/january20/02-Report6oftheCaucusCommittee-FromtheMeetingHeldJanuary6,2015.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fgb-bp/
https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf
https://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook.pdf

&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

Survey questions were asked in the following areas:

Visionary Leadership

Instructional Leadership

Human Resources Leadership

Effective Relationships

Organizational Leadership and Management
Board Interface

e General Questions and opportunity for comment

Throughout February and the beginning of March, Mr. Syme and Mr. Tyler Shapka conducted
interviews with all members of the Board of Trustees, the District Support Team and four key
external stakeholders. In addition, an online survey was administered to collect feedback from
all District Leadership Members (DLM), which is comprised of all school principals and central
office leaders.

On March 10, 2015 Mr. Syme and Mr. Shapka, met with the BSEC Committee to share the
2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’ Evaluation Survey Results. Mr. Syme also reviewed the
survey results with the Superintendent of Schools on March 19, 2015.

On April 7, 2015, Mr. Shapka of Conroy Ross met with the Caucus Committee to discuss the
results of the 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’ Evaluation Survey.

CURRENT SITUATION

A letter from Mr. Syme with respect to the summary of results of the 2014-2015 Superintendent
of Schools’ evaluation is attached (Attachment I). This summary is similar to what is prepared
by the external auditor for the Audit Committee and will be reported to the public as part of the
Board’s annual accountability practices.

KEY POINTS

The summary letter submitted by Conroy Ross of the 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’

Evaluation states that:

e The Superintendent achieved an overall rating of 4.6 on a scale of 1-5. This represents a
rating in the outstanding range.

e The Superintendent is perceived to be an exceptional leader, who has created and
communicated a strong vision for the future of EPSB. Most stakeholders acknowledged
that there has been good progress made in improving the direction of EPSB and are pleased
with a number of key initiatives that have been implemented during the past year.

e The Superintendent lives the four cornerstones of Integrity, Equity, Collaboration and
Accountability. He has built strong relationships with many of the key internal and external
stakeholders. His increasing use of data and stakeholder input has allowed several difficult
decisions to be made and implemented with little opposition. All respondents were
consistent in remarking that the Superintendent “walks the talk” with these values.

Page 102 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

e The opportunities for the Superintendent to develop were focused on the amount and pace
of change that has occurred during the past year.

In summary, the Superintendent continues to be seen as an outstanding leader, with very
positive feedback across all stakeholder groups.

ATTACHMENT

ATTACHMENT I - Letter from Conroy Ross re 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’
Evaluation

SS:mmf

Page 103 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



ATTACHMENT I

CONROY IROSS PARTNERS

SEARCH &
CONSULTING

Board and Superintendent Evaluation Committee
Edmonton Public School Board

Re: 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools’ Evaluation

We have completed the 2014-2015 Superintendent Evaluation on Mr. Darrel Robertson as requested by the Board of
Trustees of the Edmonton Public School Board. Our comprehensive evaluation comprised of a 360 degree review
including all Trustees, the District Support Team, the District Leadership Team and a number of external stakeholders. A
mix of in-person interviews and on-line surveys were used to collect the feedback from over 279 participants. An overall
recap of the results was prepared for the Board.

The Superintendent achieved an overall rating of 4.6 on a scale of 1 — 5. This represents a rating in the outstanding
range. The Superintendent is perceived to be an exceptional leader, who has created and communicated a strong vision
for the future of EPSB. Most stakeholders acknowledged that there has been good progress made in improving the
direction of EPSB and are pleased with a number of key initiatives that have been implemented during the past year.

The Superintendent lives the four cornerstones of Integrity, Equity, Collaboration and Accountability. He has built strong
relationships with many of the key internal and external stakeholders. His increasing use of data and stakeholder input
has allowed several difficult decisions to be made and implemented with little opposition. All respondents were consistent
in remarking that the Superintendent “walks the talk” with these values.

The opportunities for the Superintendent to develop were focused on the amount and pace of change that has occurred
during the past year.

In summary, the Superintendent continues to be seen as an outstanding leader, with very positive feedback across all
stakeholder groups.

Regards,

P e | \
4 )
Gord Syme
Market Leader

Conroy Ross Partners

T 7804325490 F 7804325936
720 MANULIFE PLACE 10180 1015 STREET EDMONTON, ALBERTA T5J 354
CONROYROSS.COM

Page 104 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

DATE: September 22, 2015

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools

SUBJECT: Interim Reading Assessment (Response to Request for Information #087)

ORIGINATOR: Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Executive Director, Strategic Support Services

RESOURCE
STAFF: Janice Aubry, Sonia Boctor
REFERENCE: March 3, 2015 Board Meeting (Trustee Gibson)
GK.BP: Student Assessment, Achievement and Growth
GKB.AR: Standards for Evaluation
Implementation Guide for Communicating Student Achievement and Growth
ISSUE

On March 3, 2015, the following information was requested by Trustee Gibson: Provide
information on the status of the District’s thinking around interim reading assessments; e.g. we
had HLATSs at one time, are they still current?

BACKGROUND

District teachers have been assessing reading levels of students for several decades. From
1995-2013, the District administered the Highest Level of Achievement Test (HLAT) for
reading. District-wide implementation of the HLAT for reading was suspended after the spring
2013 implementation, as the norms were no longer considered valid, no longer reflected the
diversity of current student demographics, and the test was generally deemed to be out-of-date.
It was recommended that the resources previously allocated to HLAT reading be used for the
examination and adoption or development of an alternative District reading assessment tool.

In 2013, the Research, Data and Knowledge (RDK) department gathered and analyzed
information from various sources to make recommendations for replacements and identified
the potential usefulness of the Canadian Achievement Test (CAT-4) for determining
achievement in both reading and numeracy. The CAT-4 was piloted in District schools in
February 2014, with generally positive results. At that time, the District Support Team
determined that the recommendation for CAT-4 to replace HLAT would not be supported as a
consultant with the Canadian Test Centre advised that CAT-4 was not designed to be a
diagnostic tool and the approximate cost for District-wide Grade 1 to 12 administration of the
CAT-4 ranged from $350,000 to $560,000 per year; depending on the number of students being
tested and the specific components provided by the vendor.

In 2014-2015, under direction from the Superintendent, a committee was established to:

e Consider the findings of the RDK department;

e Gather and analyze school-based information regarding processes and tools already in use
in the District for identifying students’ levels of reading;

e Examine possible tools for consistent identification and communication of individual
student reading levels across the District; and

1

Page 105 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gk-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gkb-ar/
https://portal-staffroom.epsb.ca/datafiles/Downloads_and_Resources/Publications/Research%20and%20Innovation/D0108%20Student%20Assessment%20Implementation%20Guide%202015-2016_JUNE1.pdf

&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

e Develop teaching resources and professional learning to support teachers in providing
intervention support to students not reading at grade level.

Considerations for this committee included:

e Student needs and student diversity impacting reliability of formal or external tests;

e The limited availability of additional District and school funds to implement a standardized
reading test and the sustainability of these funds from year to year;

e Existing teacher capacity to identify whether students are at, above or below grade level in
reading;

e Teacher workload;

e The challenges experienced with the implementation of the SLAs and the impact
introducing another diagnostic test would have across the District;

e EXisting processes that are already in place to determine reading levels; and

e The work undertaken District-wide to implement GK.BP: Student Assessment,
Achievement and Growth and GKB.AR: Standards for Evaluation.

The findings of the working group revealed that over the last decade, the District has
significantly invested in literacy professional learning and has begun to build capacity,
especially in the elementary grades, for teachers to determine whether students are reading at,
above or below grade level. Research-based tools, such as those developed by Fountas and
Pinnell, are currently used in most District elementary schools. These research-based tools
provide information regarding individual student reading levels and are also used to support
effective literacy development and best practices in reading instruction. Formal intervention
supports such as Reading Recovery® and Leveled Literacy Intervention have been
implemented in District elementary schools, and involve the use of reliable tools that teachers
use to determine student reading levels. In consultation with an elementary focus group,
comprised of principals and lead teachers, it was agreed that District-wide implementation of
an external reading test would not be the preferred choice for moving forward. External
standardized tests are typically costly, not aligned to the Alberta programs of study and are not
a part of day-to-day teaching practice. Alternatively, it was felt that the development of
common District tools that further support teachers to accurately and reliably assess a student’s
reading level as part of the ongoing teaching and learning process, would have the greatest
impact on student growth in reading.

The findings of the working group also suggested that additional support for determining grade
level of reading at the secondary levels is required. While tools are available to support
teachers in determining reading levels, challenges currently exist; some of which are
highlighted below:

e The existing tools used for assessing reading levels at the secondary levels have not yet been
reliably correlated to provincial programs of study and provincial grade levels.

e Current junior high school and high school practices that are in place significantly differ
from site to site.

¢ Consistent, systematic assessment of student grade levels of reading is not evident across all
schools.

e As secondary teachers approach instruction through the lens of subject specific instruction,
the teaching of reading best practices can often get overlooked. Development of grade level
indicators, that can support reading assessment and instruction across subject specific areas,
would be beneficial.

2

Page 106 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

Further work would need to occur to establish a plan to prepare secondary school staff for
effective, reliable and consistent implementation of a grade level reading assessment and
reporting process across all schools.

CURRENT SITUATION

Reading is critical to school and lifelong success. As such, the District is developing additional
ways to support this essential life skill through a District-wide focus on reading. Collaborative
work continues with teachers and principals to further develop and implement practical and
effective resources and instructional practices in the area of reading.

Throughout the spring and summer, the District developed draft curriculum-aligned grade
level reading guidelines with indicators and descriptors based on the Alberta program of
studies for Grades 1 to 6. These curriculum-aligned resources will support teachers in
consistently reporting grade level of reading across all elementary schools for all elementary
students, beginning in June 2016. No new District-wide reading testing program will be
implemented to replace the HLAT. Teachers will continue to use assessment tools being used
at their schools, with the additional support of the newly developed curriculum-aligned support
materials. In this approach, honouring teacher professional judgment and capacity is the focus.
Professional learning opportunities will be provided throughout the 2015-2016 school year for
teachers to further develop their skills - incorporating the curriculum they are already using and
the skills they already have to accurately and consistently assess whether students are reading
at, above, or below grade level. The principals and lead teachers that were consulted, felt
having a full year, was a supportive strategy that honoured teacher workload and current
capacity and was an opportunity to increase professional capital across the District by ensuring
every elementary teacher has the same basic skills in assessing and analyzing student reading.
Common professional learning, supports and tools will build consistency, equity and
accountability across the District in aligning research-based assessment practices to the area of
reading. This aligns with GK.BP, GKB.AR and the Implementation Guide for Communicating
Student Achievement and Growth.

District-wide reporting of whether students in Grades 7 to12 are at, above or below grade level
in reading will occur in June 2017. The complexity of reading at the secondary level requires a
more detailed implementation plan and the development of curriculum-aligned resources. A
1.0 full time equivalent (FTE) teacher consultant has been assigned to lead this work with
involvement of school staff.

In addition, volunteer cohorts of elementary and secondary schools will participate in a two-
year pilot to explore ways in which the reading levels reported in June can support the
development of student intervention plans and the implementation of intervention strategies
during 2015-2017. This pilot will be valuable for informing the District on strategies that are
effective in providing the following year’s teacher with information on students that may
require additional reading interventions and supports. It also may be a future mechanism for
determining, over time, if reading intervention strategies used in schools are resulting in more
students reading at grade level. Learnings from this pilot will be shared District-wide.

Two principal advisory committees have been formed - one for elementary and one for
secondary schools. A central advisory committee has also been formed to support the work.
These committees will meet monthly throughout 2015-2016 to guide this work.

3

Page 107 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package



&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

This District-wide focus on reading is grounded in the District’s cornerstone values of
collaboration, equity, integrity and accountability. It reflects a valuing of teacher expertise and
professional judgment, includes strong elements of individual and collective accountability, and
supports the building of teacher capacity for determining reading levels and supporting
improved student reading.

Other potential benefits include:

Increased teacher capacity to provide quality literacy-focused programming, assessment and
interventions for students.

Increased teacher capacity to have meaningful conversations with both students and their
parents around literacy progress and growth.

Consistency in information provided to parents regarding student reading levels.

The ability for District-wide capturing and monitoring of student reading data including
students achieving at below grade level, and student reading growth over time, with minimal
impact on the workload of schools, and with minimal central staff time required.

Reducing the perception of additional teacher workload through the administration of
further external tests.

Annual cost savings achieved through not purchasing of the CAT-4 test administration
services.

The ability to use existing consultant supports available to leadership groups to support
school implementation and teacher capacity-building.

KEY POINTS

Over the last decade, the District has supported opportunities for literacy professional
learning; teachers have developed significant capacity, especially in the elementary grades
to determine reading levels and to support student reading development.

In April 2013, the District-wide implementation of the HLAT Reading Assessment was
suspended. No new District-wide reading testing program will be implemented to replace it.
Teachers will continue to use assessment tools being used at their schools, with the
additional support of newly developed curriculum-aligned support materials, to determine
whether or not their students are reading at grade level relative to the Alberta programs of
study.

Reporting whether students are at, above or below grade level in reading will occur in June
2016 for students in Grades 1 to 6 and in June 2017 for students in Grades 7 to12.

A link on Staffroom https://portal-staffroom.epsb.ca/k-12-literacy has been created to assist
with communication regarding this District-wide reading focus, along with a share site
https://sites.google.com/a/epsb.ca/crs-district-reading-initiative/ that will host information
and teaching materials to support schools in reporting grade level of reading.

Volunteer cohorts of elementary and secondary schools will participate in a two-year pilot
additionally developing student intervention plans and implementing intervention strategies
during 2015-2017. Learnings from this pilot will be shared District-wide.

Two principal advisory committees have been formed - one for elementary and one for
secondary schools. A central advisory committee has also been formed to support the work.
These committees will meet monthly throughout 2015-2016 to guide this work.

Teacher professional judgment is valued and is key to this work.

This initiative supports District Priority 1, Goal Two: Success for Every Student.

JAjg

4

Page 108 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


https://portal-staffroom.epsb.ca/k-12-literacy
https://sites.google.com/a/epsb.ca/crs-district-reading-initiative/

&8 EDMONTON PUBLIC SCHOOLS Information Report

DATE: September 22, 2015

TO: Board of Trustees

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools
SUBJECT: Bereavement

ORIGINATOR: Angela Anderson, Managing Director, Human Resources

RESOURCE
STAFF: Sandy Boyce
REFERENCE: FM.BP Acknowledgement of Deaths and Bereavements

FM.AR Deaths and Bereavements

Mrs. Carol Opalka passed away at the age of 63, on September 1, 2015. She began working
with the District as a temporary secretary in 1991 at Kenilworth School. She obtained
permanent status in 1992 and in 2008, her job was reclassified to clerk. Mrs. Opalka continued
working at Kenilworth School until she took a leave of absence in July 2015. Carol is survived
by her husband Stan, and children Elan, Jill and Travis.

AA:sb

Page 109 of 109 of September 22, 2015 - Consolidated Board Meeting Package


https://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fm-bp/
https://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fm-ar/

	Agenda
	01 - Ward G Trustee Candidate 3-Minute Platform Speeches
	02 - DRAFT Board Minutes - September 8, 2015
	03 - Motion re EndPovertyEdmonton Strategy
	04 - Motion re Wellness Foundation for Alberta
	05 - 2014-2015 Board Self-Evaluation
	06 - 2014-2015 Superintendent of Schools Evaluation
	07 - Interim Reading Assessment - Response to RFI 087
	08 - Bereavement



